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Marks and Spencer pic

Strategic Report

Review of the business and future developments

Marks and Spencer plc (the ‘Company’) 1s the main trading company of the Marks & Spencer group of companies The Company
and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group") are one of the UK's leading retailers of clothing, food and home products We employ over 85,000
people and have around 1,200 stores including Simply Food franchised stores We also trade in wholly-owned stores in the
Netherlands, Republic of Ireland, France, Hungary, Heng Kong and China, through partly-owned stores e a number of European
countnes and in franchises within Asia, Europe and the Middle East

Marks and Spencer pic 1s incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales The Company's registered office 1s Waterside House,
35 North Wharf Road, London W2 1NW

The financial statements are made up to the nearest Saturday to 31 March each year The current financial year 1s the 52 weeks
ended 29 March 2014 (the year’)

Further information that fulfils the strategic review requirements of the Companies Act 2006 can be found in the following sections of
the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report, which does not form part of this report

Chairman’s statement on pages 2 -3

Chief Executives review on pages 8 — 14

Financial review on pages 32 — 35

Strategic review on pages 18 — 31

Environmental, Social and Community matters on pages 18 - 31
Employees on pages 30 - 31

Results
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
29 March 30 March
2014 2013
Em £m
Summary of Group results
Revenue 10,3097 10,026 8
Operating profit before non-underlying operating profit items 7419 7786
Underlying net finance costs (119 0) (130 5)
Underlying profit before tax 6229 648 1
Profit on property disposal 822 -
UK and lreland one-off penston credits 275 -
Interest income on tax repayment net of fees 33 -
Restructunng costs (77 3) {9 3)
International store review 21 9) -
IAS 39 Farr value movement of embedded denvative {(35) 58
Strategic programme costs {(20) (6 6}
Fair value movement on buy back of the Puttable Callable Reset medium-term notes - (75 3)
Reduction in M&S Bank income for the impact of the financial product mis-selling provision (50 B) (15 5)
Profit before tax 580 4 547 2

Group revenue increased by 2 8% to £10,309 7m Group operating profit (before adjustments to underlying operating profit)
decreased by 4 7% to £741 Sm

Underlying net finance costs, were £119 Om compared with £130 5m last year The average interest rate of borrowings during the
year was 5 3% (last year 5 6%) Profit before tax was £580 4m compared with £547 2m last year

Pnncipal nsks and uncertainties and financial sk management

The key business nsks and uncertainties affecting the Company are considered 1o relate to competition from other retailers, the
economic outlook, employee retention, new stores and distnbution centres and the modernisation of the existing portfolio The
directors manage these risks at a Marks and Spencer Group plc level and they are discussed on pages 15 to 17 and 44 of that
Group's annual report which does not form part of this report, but 1s still considered up 1o date in this respect Copies of the Marks
and Spencer Group plc consolidated financial statements can be obtained from the Company Secretary at Waterside House, 35
North Wharf Road, London W2 1NW
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Strategic Report

Key performance indicators

Information on the Company’s key performance indicators can be found on pages 12 — 13 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc
Annual Report, which does not form part of this report

Going concern

In adopting the going concern basis for prepanng the financial statements, the directors have considered the business activities as
set out on pages 1 to 35 of the Marks and Spencer Group ple Annual Report as well as the Group's principal risks and uncertainties
as set out on pages 16 to 17 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report Based on the Group's cash flow forecasts and
projections, the Board 1s satisfied that the Group will be able to operate within the level of its facilities for the foreseeable future For
this reason the Group continues to adopt the going concern in prepaning its financial statements

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board on 23 September 2014 and signed on its behalf by

Amanta Mellor
Director
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Report of the Directors

Profit and dividends

The profit for the financial year, after taxation, amounts to £489 3m (last year £461 5m} The directors have declared dividends as
follows

2014 2013
£m £m
Crdinary shares
Paid intenm dividend 3 5p (last year 3 5p) 997 997
Proposed final dwvidend 6 2p (last year 6 1p) 176 7 1739
Total ordinary dividend 9 7p per share (last year 9 6p) 276 4 2736
Share capital

The Company’s 1ssued ordinary share capital, as at 29 March 2014 compnsed a single class of ordinary share Details of
movements In the 1ssued share capital can be found 1n note 23 to the financial statements

Significant agreements

There are a number of agreements to which the Company is party that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the
Company following a takeover bid Details of the significant agreements of this kind are as follows

~the £400m Medium Term Notes i1ssued by the Company on 30 November 2009, the £300m Medium Term Notes 1ssued by the
Company on the 6 December 2011 and the £400m Medium Term Notes ('MTN') 1ssued by the Company on 12 December 2012 to
varnous institutions and under the Group’s £3bn Euro Medium Term Note (EMTN) programme contain an option such that, upon a
change of contrcl event, combined with a credit ratings downgrade to below sub-investment level, any holder of an MTN may
require the Company tc prepay the principal amount of that MTN,

—the $500m US Notes issued by the Company to vanous institutions on 6 December 2007 under section 144a of the US Secunties
Act contamn an option such that, upon a change of control event, combined with a credit ratings downgrade to below sub-investment
level, any holder of such a US Note may require the Company to prepay the principal amount of that US Note,

—the $300m US Notes 1ssued by the Company to various instituttons on 6 December 2007 under section 144a of the US Secunties
Act contain an option such that, upon a change of control event, combined with a credit ratings downgrade to below sub-investment
level, any holder of such a US Note may require the Company to prepay the principal amount of that US Note,

—the £1 325bn Credit Agreement dated 29 September 2011 between the Company and various banks contains a provision such
that, upon a change of control event, unless new terms are agreed within 60 days, the facility under this agreement will be cancelled
with all outstanding amounts becoming immediately payable with interest,

—the £100m Btlateral Facility dated 16 May 2013 between the Company and Lloyds Bank expinng May 2015 contains a provision
such that, upon a change of control event, unless net terms are agreed within 60 days, the facility under this agreement will be
cancelled with all outstanding amounts becoming mmediately payable with interest,

~the amended and restated Relationship Agreement dated 1 February 2012 (onginally dated 9 November 2004 as amended on 1
March 2005), between HSBC and the Company relating to M&S Bank, contains certain provisions which address a change of
control of the Company Upon a change of contro! the exasting nghis and obligations of the parties in respect of M&S Bank continue
and HSBC gains certain lmited additional nghts in respect of existing customers of the new confroller of the Company Where a
third-party arrangement is in place for the supply of financial services products to existing customers of the new controller, the
Company 1s required to procure the termination of such arrangement as soon as reascnably practicable {(whilst not being required to
do anything that would breach any contract n place n respect of such arrangement} Where a thiwd-party arrangement 1s so
terminated, or does not exist, HSBC gains certain exclusivity nights in respect of the sale of financial services products to the
existing customers of the new controller Where the Company undertakes a rebranding exercise with the new controller following a
change of control {(which includes any M&S brand in respect of the new controller’s business or vice versa), HSBC gains certain
termination nghts (exercisable at its election) in respect of the Relationship Agreement, and

-The Company does not have agreements with any director or employee that would provide compensation for loss of office or
employment resulting from a takeover, except that provisions of the Company's share schemes and plans may cause options and
awards granted to employees under such schemes and plans to vest on a takeover
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Report of the Directors

Directors

The direclors who held office duning the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were as follows

Marc Bolland

Amanda Mellor

Steven Sharp (resigned 19 August 2013)
John Dixon (appointed 16 October 2013}
Alan Stewart (resigned 7 July 2014)

Directors’ indemnities

The Company maintains directors’ and officers’ hability insurance which gives appropriate cover for any legal achon brought against
its directors The Company has also granted indemnities to each of its directors and the Group Secretary to the extent permitied by
law

Qualfying third party indemnity provisions (as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) were In force during the year
ended 29 March 2014 and remain in force, in relation to certain iosses and habilities which the directors may incur to third parties in
the course of aching as diectors or employees of the Company or of any associated company

Employee involvement

We remain committed to emplayee involvement throughout the business Employees are kept well informed of the performance and
strategy of the Group through personal briefings, regular meetings, personal letters home, email and broadcasts by the Chief
Executive and members of the Group Board at key points in the year to all head office employees and store management In
addiion many of our store colleagues can jon the briefings by telephone to hear directly from the business These types of
communication are supplemented by ocur employee publications including, 'Your M&S' magazine, Plan A updates and DVD
presentations More than 3,500 employees are elected onto Business Involvement Groups (‘BIGs') across every store and head
office location to represent their colleagues In two-way communication and consultatton with the Company They have continued to
play a key role in a wide vanety of business changes

The 19th meeting of the European Works Council (‘(EWC’) {(established in 1995) took place in September 2014 This Council
provides an addiienal forum for informing, consuling with and involving employee representatives from the countries in the
Eurcpean Community The EWC includes members from our party owned company established in the Czech Republic, Greece,
Bulgana, France, Netherlands, Creatia, Slovenia, Romania, the Republic of Irefand and the UK The EWC will have the cpporiunity
to be addressed by the Chief Executive and other senior members of the Company on 1ssues that affect the European business
This will include the directors of International and Multi-channel and the director of Pian A, which aill have an impact across the
European Community

Directors and senior management regularly attend the Nationa! BIG meetings They visit stores and discuss with employees matters
of current interest and concern to both employees and the business through meetings with local BIG representatives, specific
listening groups and informal discussiens The business has continued to engage with employees and dnive involvement through a
scheme called the BIG Idea On a quarterly basis the Company poses a question to gather ideas and inthiatives on a number of
areas including how we better serve customers Several thousand deas are put forward each time and the winning employee
receives an award and the chance to see how this i1s implemented by the Company

Share schemes are a long-established and successful part of our tota! reward package, encouraging and supporting employee
share ownership In particular, around 24,000 employees currently participate in Sharesave, the Company's all employee Save As
You Earn Scheme Full details of all schemes are given on pages 29 to 30 in note 12 to the financial statements

We have a well established interactive wellbeing website, called planahealth com, a completely bespoke website and service
designed exclusively for M&S employees It gives any employee the opportunity to access a wealth of information, help and
support We cover all areas of wellbeing, from healthy eating and exercise, to help in overcoming 1ssues such as stress, financiat
challenges, achieving a positive work-life halance and problems with sleeping Via this service, employees can access our personal
support teams for counselling, physiotherapy and our personal health coach

The response has been excellent with 20,000 employees wisiting the site, making personal pledges to improve a specific health or
wellbeing 1ssue  Employees are able to interact with one another, post information about clubs and groups in therr area, and can
gain access o information about corporate projects which link to their personal health pledges

We maintain contact with retired staff through communications from the Company and the Pension Trust Member-nominated
trustees have been elected to the Pension Trust Board, including employees and pensioners We continue to produce a regular
Pensions Update newsletter for members of our final salary pension scheme and the M&S Retirement Plan
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Report of the Directors

Equal opportunities

The Group I1s committed to an active equal opportunities policy from recruttment and selection, through traiming and development,
performance reviews and promotion to retirement It 1s our policy to promote an environment free from discnmination, harassment
and wictimisation, where everyone will receive equal treatment regardless of gender, colour, ethric or national onigin, disability, age,
marital status, sexual orentation or religion All decisions relating to employment practices will be objective, free from bias and
based solely upon work cntenia and individual ment The Company I1s responsive to the needs of its employees, customers and the
community at large We are an organisation which uses everyone's talents and abilities and one where diversity is valued We were
one of the first major companies to remove the default retirement age in 2001 and have continued to see an increase in employees
wanting to work past the state retirement age Our oldest employee I1s 87 years old and jomed the business at age 80 |n Apni 2014,
the Company once agan featured in The Times Top 50 Places for Women to work and considers this highlights how equal
opportunities are available for alt

Employees with disabilities

It 1s our policy that people with disabilities should have full and farr consideration for all vacancies Dunng the year, we continued to
demonstrate our commitment to interviewing those people with disabilities who fulfil the mimmum cntena, and endeavounng to
relain employees in the workforce if they become disabled duning employment We will actively retrain and adjust their environment
where possible to allow them te maxinuse therr potential We continue to work with external organisations to provide workplace
opportunities through our innovative Marks & Start scheme and by working closely with JobCentrePlus The Marks & Start scheme
was introduced into our distnbution centre at Castle Dorungton in 2012/13, where we worked with Remploy to support people with
disabilities and health conditions into work

Political donations

No political donations were made durning the year ended 29 March 2014 Marks & Spencer has a poficy of not making donations to
political organisations or independent election candidates or incurnng pelitical expenditure anywhere in the world as defined in the
Political Parhies, Elections and Referendums Act 2000

Events after the reporting period

There have not been any significant events since the balance sheet date An indication of likely future developments in the business
of the Company are included in the strategic report

Financial instruments

Information about the use of financial instruments by the company and its subsidiaries 1s given in note 20 to the financial
statements

Grocenes supply code of practice

The Grocenes (Supply Chain Practices) Market investigation Order 2008 (‘Order') and The Grecenes Supply Code of Practice
('GSCOP') impose obhgations on M&S relating to relationships with its supphers of grocenes Under the Order and GSCOP, M&S 1s
required to submit an annual compliance report to the Audit Committee for approval and then to the Office of Farr Trading and
Grocenes Code Adjudicator

M&S submitted its report to the Audit Committee on 15 May 2014, coverning the year 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 In accordance
with the Order, a summary of that comphance report 1s set out below

M&S believes that it has complied in full with GSCOP and the Order duning the relevant year Only two suppliers alleged breaches
of the Order/GSCOP Aside from a dispute referred to below, which has now been resolved, only one supplier has alleged breaches
of the Order/GSCOP duning the reporting year Communications between M&S and the supplier are ongoing and the complaint has
not been escalated to the Code Compliance Officer

M&S operates systems and controls to ensure compliance with the Order and GSCOP including the following

- The terms and conditions which govern the trading relationship between M&S and those of its supplers that supply grocenes to
Ma&S incorporate GSCOP,

- New suppliers are issues with iInformation as required by the Order,

- M&S has a Code Compliance Officer as required under the Order, supported by our in-house legal department, and

- Employee training on GSCOP 1s provided, including annual refresher programmes and new starter training

A formal cispute between M&S and a grocery supplier arose under the Order/GSCO dunng the previous financial year (2012/13)
During the reporting year (2013/14), that dispute was resclved and no other formal disputes arose
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Total Global M&S Greenhouse Gas Emissions 2013/14

201314

000 tonnes

Direct emissions {scope 1) 169
Indirect emissions from energy (scope 2) 339
Total statutory emissions {scope 1+2) 508
Transport, energy, waste and bustness travel (scope 3) 58
Total gross emisstons 566
Carbon intensity measure (per 1,000 sq ft of salesfloor) 30
Deduchons for ‘green’ tanffs and carbon offsets 566

Total net emissions -

Calculated based on operational control in accordance with WRIAWBCSD GHG Reporting Protocals (Revised editon) and 2014 DECC/DEFRA Guidefines This is the first year that GHG
amissions have been calculated for alf M&S actities globally

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Report of the Directors and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the diwectors have
prepared the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {(IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group
for that year In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
- make Judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

- prepare the financia! statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the Group and the
Company will continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explan the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasenable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and Group and enable them
to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregulanties

Corporate governance statement

The Group has established internal control and risk management systems in relation to the process for preparing consolidated
financial statements The key features of these internal control and risk management systems are

- Management of the Group conduct perodic reviews of the Group's nsks and mihigatron  Each business unit 1s responsible for
identifying, assessing and managing the nsks in their respective areas on a half yearly basis These are then collated to give a
consolidated view of the business nsk areas,

- Management regularly monitors and censiders developments in the accounting regulations and best practice in financial reporting,
and, where appropnate, reflects developments n the consclidated financial statements Appropnate bnefings and/or training are
provided to key finance personne! on relevant developments in accounting and financial reporting,

- The Group's consohdation 1s subject to vanous levels of review by the Group finance function, and

- The financial statements are subject to external audit

Disclosure of information to auditor

Each director confirms that, so far as he 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor 1s unaware
and that each director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to ensure that the Company's auditor 1s aware of that information
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Independent auditor

A resolution to appoint Deloitte LLP as auditor of the Company has been approved by the directors at the time of signing these
financial statements PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP remain the audrtor for the year ended 29 March 2014

Approved on behalf of the Board

Amanda Mellor, Director
London, 23 September 2014




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Marks and Spencer plc

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our opimon
In our opinon

+ the financial statements, defined below, give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company's affarrs as at
29 March 2014 and of the group’s profit and the group’s and the company’s cash flows for the year then ended,

+ the group financiat statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFR3s) as adopted by the European Union,

« the company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and as appled in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006, and

+» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparnies Act 2006 and, as
regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

This opinion 1s to be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this reporl

What we have audited

The group financial statements and company financial statements {the “financial statements”), which are prepared by Marks and
Spencer plc, comprise

+ the Consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 29 March 2014,

« the Consolidated income statement and the Consolidated and Company statements of comprehensive income for the year
then ended,

s the Consohdated and Company statements of cash flows for the year then ended,

« the Consoldated and Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended, and

« the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European
Umion and, as regards the company finrancial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Compamies Act 2006

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates In making such estmates, they have made assumptions and considered future events

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (*ISAs (UK & Ireland)™) An audit
involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

« whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group’s and the company's circumstances and have been consistently
apphed and adequately disclosed,

+ the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and
+ the overall presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial infermation in the financial statements to identify matenal inconsistencies with the
audited financial statements and to «dentfy any information that 1s apparently materially incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the implicatiens for our report

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared i1s consistent with the financial statements

OTHER MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION
Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion

+« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

s adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not visited by us, or

« the company financiat statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility
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OTHER MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION continued
Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT
Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities set out on page 6, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements 1in accordance with applicable taw and ISAs (UK &
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opintons, accept or assume responsibihty
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing

Tand Coyp ;

Paul Cragg (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

23 September 2014
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Consolidated income statement

52 weoks ended 52 weeks ended
29 March 2014 30 March 2013
{restatad)’
Notes fm £m
Revenue . _ 2,3 10,308 7 10,026 8
Operating profit 2,3 o 6945 7830
Finance income & 250 12 4
Finance costs € {139 1) {218 2)
Profit before tax ST T T T e 5804 5472
Income tax expense o o | {91 1) (857)
Profit for the year 489 3 461 5
Attributable to
Owners of the parent 5081 470 2
Non-controlling interests ) - L _ (18 8} (87}
- . . 489 3 4615
Non-GAAP measures Underlying profit before tax
Profit before tax 580 4 547 2
Adjusted for
Profit on property disposal 5 (82 2} -
UK and Ireland one-off pension credits 5 (27 5} -
Interest ncome on tax repayment net of fees 5 {3 3) -
Restructunng costs 5 773 93
International store review 5 219 -
IAS 39 Farr value movement of embedded dervative 5 35 (58)
Strategic programme costs 5 20 66
Fair value movement on buy back of the Puttable Callable Reset medium-term notes 5 - 753
_Reduction in M&S Bank incame for the impact of the financial product mis-selling provision __ 5 508 155
Underlying profit before tax 1 6229 648 1
1 Restatement relates to the adoption of the ravised IAS 19 Employee Benefits’ (see note 1)
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
52 weoks anded 52 weeks ended
29March 2014 30 March 2013
{rostated)’
Notes £m £m
Profit for the year o o 489 3 461 5
Other comprehensive (expense)income
items that will not be classified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of reirement benefit schemes 11 {85 3) 1058
Tax credit/(charge) on retirement benefit schemes 318 (23 3)
(53 5) 825
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation differences (20 8) 79
Farr value movement on avaitable-for-sale assets (19 6) (8 5)
Cash flow and net investment hedges
— far value movements n other comprehensive income {109 9) 336
- reclassified and reported in net profit 364 {26 0}
— amount recognised In iInventories o ) 187 {13 6)
Tax credit/{charge) on cash flow hedges and net investment hedges 122 {0 4)
(830) {70)
Other comprehensive (expense)income for the year, net of tax {136 5) 755
Total comprehensive income for the year 3528 537 0
Afttributable to .
Owners of the parent 3716 5457
Non-controlling interests (18 8) 87
3528 5370

1 Restatement refates to the adoption of the revised IAS 18 Employee Benefits {see note 1)

10
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Consolidated statement of financial position

As at As at
29 March 2014 30 March 2013
{restated)’
Notes £m £m
Assets
Non-current assels
Intangible assets 13 808 4 6950
Property, plant and equipment 14 51399 50337
Investment property B 157 158
Investment in joint ventures 27 155
Other financial assets 15 163 34 4
Retirement benefit asset 10 2007 2491
Trade and other receivables 16 3135 265 4
Dervative financial iInstruments 20 406 653
T - 0 - T T T T T 6,547 B i 6,374 2
Current assets T T T T T ) T
Inventories 8455 767 3
Other financial assets 15 2,489 5 2,6337
Trade and other receivables 16 3095 2450
Denvatwve financial instruments 20 137 425
Current tax recevable . 31
Cash and cash equivalents 17 1821 163 1
- 3,840 3 3,784 7
Total assets - _ - i 10,388 1 10158 9
Liabilities B -
Current habitites
Trade and other payables 18 1,6928 1,503 8
Partnership kabilty to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 11 719 719
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 19 448 7 5587
Denvative financial instruments 20 515 137
Provisions 21 4 8 19 2
Current tax habihities 396 54 3
- - a S 2,3493 22216
Non-current liabilties N . i h o
Retirement benefit deficit 10 147 13 1
Trade and other payables 18 3340 262 1
Partnership hability to the Marks & Spencer UK pension scheme 496 8 5507
Borrowings and other financial habilities 19 1,655 1 1,727 3
Derwative financial instruments 20 "754 13 1
Provisions 21 314 160
Deferred tax habilities 22 24256 2406
S - - 2,847 0 28529
Total liabilities - I - 5193 5074 5
Net assets o - 51918 5,084 4
Equity T
Issued share capital 23 712 6 7125
Share premium account 386 1 386 1
Capital redemption reserve ) 80 80
Hedging reserve (41 8} 92
Retaned eamings ) 41276 3,987 6
Total shareholders’ equty ) 51924 5,103 4
Non-controlling Interests n equity o ) {0 6) (190}
Total equity 5191 8 5,084 4

1 Restatement retates to the adoption of the revised LAS 19 Employee Benefits {see note 1)

The financia! statements were approved by the Board and authonsed for 1ssue on 23 September 2014 The financial statements also compnse

of the notes on pa 14 to 44

John Dixon, Director

11
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Ordnary Share Capdal Other R Non-
hare promum redempion  NOWTS ree came’  Tam Trend 1o
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 1 April 2012 (restated)? 7125 386 1 80 148 4279 38574 54067 (114) 53953
“Profit(loss) for the year (restated)’ - - - - - 4702 4702 87 4615
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation - - - (15) - 94 79 - 79
?:r:r;i‘a:su;?em;;tesdc;‘f retirement benefit _ _ _ _ — 1058 1058 _ 105 8
schomes estatedy - - - - - @3 @3 - @3y
Farr value movement in equity on available for sale _ - . _ _ (85) 85) R (85)
assets
Cash flow and net investment hedges
- fair value movements in other comprehensive
Ao, P - - - 359 - (23 338 - 336
- reclassified and reported in net profit* - - - (260) - - {260) - (26 O)
= amount recognised in inventones - - - (136} - - {136) - {13 6)
Tax on cash flow hed
hadgas 7g«is aT net mvesfmjrji- - - - (0 4) _ _ 0 4) _ (0 4)
Other comprehensive (expense)iincome {restated)’ - = - ey - 811 755 - 755
Total comprehensive (—expense).fmcome (restated)’ - ST - (5 6) - 5513 5457 87N 5370
Trangsactions with owners
Dividends - - - - - (27386) (2736) - (273 6)
Transactions with non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - 11 11
Recognition of financial hability - - - - (4279) (1781) (6060) - (606 Oy
Credit for share-based payments - - - - - 280 280 - 280
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - 26 26 - 26
As at 30 March 2013 (restated)’ 7125 3861 80 92 - 39876 51034 (190) 50844
“As at 31 March 2013 (restated)’ 7125 3861 80 92 - 39876 51034 (190) 50844
Profit/{loss) for the year - - - - - 5081 5081 (18.8) 489 3
Other comprehensive (expense)income .
Foreign currency translation - - - (07) - (201) (208) - (20 8)
Remeasurements of retirement benefit schemes - - - - - (853) (853) = (85 3)
Tax charge on retirement benefit schemes - - - - - 318 318 - 318
Fair value movement in equi
Fan e quity on avallable for sale _ _ _ _ - (196) (196) _ (19 6)
Cash flow and net investment hedges
- ifﬁ::ro‘:\i:aue movements n other comprehensive _ _ - (117 6) _ 77 (1099 N (109 9)
- reclassified and reported in net proﬁt‘ - - - 36.4 - - 364 - 364
— amount recognised In inventones - - - 18.7 - - 187 — 187
Tax on cash flow hedges and net investment hedges ~ - - 122 - - 122 - 122
Other comprehensive expense - - - {510 - (855) (1365) - (136 5)
Total comprehensive (expense}income - - - (510) - 4226 3716 (188) 3528
Transactions with owners . B
Dividends - - - - - {2736} (273 6) - (273.6)
Transactions with non-controlling shareholders - - - _-_7 - (393) (393) 32.2_ (21)
Credit for share-based payments - - - - . - 213 213 - 213
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - 90 90 - 9.0
As at 29 March 2014 7125 3861 80 (418) - 41276 51924 {06) 5,191 8

Restatement relates to the adoption of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits’ (see note 1)
On 21 May 2012 the Group changed the terms of the Marks and Spencer Scottish Partnership and the total equity instrument of £427 8m was derecognised and the far value of the

1
2
remainung distnbutions of £606 Om was recognised as a financal liabdity (see note 11}
3 The Retained earrungs reserve includes a cumulatve £7 1m loss {last year £14 5m gan) n the currency reserve
4 Amounts reclassified and reported m net profit have all been recorded in cost of sales
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Marks and Spencer plc

Consolidated cash flow information

52 weeks ended

52 weoks endad

29 March 2014 30 March 2013
Notas £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 25 1,1755 1,246 2
Income tax paid (45.9) {106 0)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,129.6 1,140 2
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on property disposals 250 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {440 1) {642 6)
Purchase of intangible assets {201 5) (1871}
{Purchase)/sale of current financial assets {17) 2434
Interest receved 34 59
Net cash used tn investing activities (614 9) (580 4)
Cash flows from financing activities o
Interest paid' i 327 {135 2)
Cash inflow from borrowings _ 1675 05
Drawdown of syndicated loan notes 1541 810
Movement in parent company loan 44 2 252
Issue of medium-term notes - 3956
Redemption of medium-term notes {400 0) {606 4)
Decrease in obhigations under finance leases {7 3) (110)
Payment of hability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (50 3) (719)
Equity dividends paid (273 6) (273 6)
Net cash used in financing activities (498 1) (595 8)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from activities ) 166 (36 0)
Effects of exchange rate changes (16) 09
Opening net cash N . 1607 1958
Closing net cash 26 1757 1607
1 includes interest on the partnership hability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme
52 waeeks ended 52 woeks ended
29 March 2014 30 March 2013
Notes £m £m
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Opening net debt (97 5) 684 6
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from activities : 16 6 360)
Decrease in current financiat assets {44 2) (268 5)
Decrease in debt financing B _1359 1327
Partnership llability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme {non-cash) - (606 0)
Exchange and other non-cash movements (2 6) 43)
Movement in net debt 1057 {782 1)
Closing net debt 26 82 (97 5)

13




Marks and Spencer plc

Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial stalements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS} and
IFRS Interpretations Commitiee (IFRS IC) interpretations, as
adopted by the European Union and with those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 apphicable to companies reporting under
IFRS

In adopting the going concern basis for preparing the financial
statements, the directors have considered the business
activities as set out on pages 1 to 7 as well as the Group's
principal risks and uncertainties as set out on pages 16 to 17
of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report Based on
the Group’s cash flow forecasts and projections, the Board 1s
satisfied that the Group will be able to operate within the level
of its facilites for the foreseeable future For this reason the
Group continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparnng
its financial statements

The following IFRS, IFRS IC interpretaticns and
amendments are effective for the first time in this financial
year

IAS 19 (revised) 'Employee Benefits’ has been adopted in the
financial year The revised standard replaces the expected
return on plan assets and the interest cost on habilities with a
net interest expense calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit asset or hability In addit:on,
admirustration costs on pension funds are now recogrised in
the profit or loss when the administration services are
performed Previously the Group included an expense reserve
in the defined benefit obligation The revised standard has
retrospective application The adoption of the revised standard
has resulted in the following changes

income Statement (total profit after tax decrease of £13 2m;)

— Service cost increased by £3 Om,
— Pension interest income decreased by £14 1m, and
— Income tax expense decreased by £3 9m

Statement of Financial Position (total net asset
increase of £33 1m)

— Net retirement benefit asset increased by £43 Om, and
— Deferred tax liabilty increased by £9 9m

Retained Earnings (total increase of £33 1m)

— Opening retained earnings increased by £34 6m,

— Profit after tax decreased by £13 2m,

— Remeasurements of retirement benefit assets recognised
tn
other comprehensive income (OCI) increased by £15 1m,
and

— Tax on retirement benefit scheme recognised in OCI
increased
by £34m

The Group has adopted the amendments to IAS 1
‘Presentation of items of other comprehensive income’, which
require items of other comprehensive Income to be grouped
by those items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss and those that will never be reclassified The

amendments have been applied retrospectively and the
presentation of tems of comprehensive income have been
regrouped fo reflect the change

The Group has adopted IFRS 13 ‘Farr value measurement’
and the measurement and disclosure requirements are
applicable for the financial year beginning 31 March 2013
IFRS 13 aims to improve consistency and reduce
complexity by providing precise definthion of farr value and
a single source of far measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across IFRS The requirements,
which are largely aligned between IFRS and US GAAP, do
not extend the use of farr value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applhied where its use 1s
already required or permitted by other standards This has
no material impact on the Group

The Group has adopted the amendments to IFRS 7
‘Disclosures — Offsetting Frnancial Assets and Financial
Liabilities’ for the first ime 1n the current year Refer to note
21

The Group has also early adopted the amendments to IAS
36 ‘Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets’ for the first time in the current year Refer to note
14

There are no other new standards or amendments to
standards which are mandatory for the first time in this
financial year that have had any matenal impact on the
Group

IFRS 10 'Censohdated Financial Statements’, IFRS 11
‘Joint Arrangements’ and IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities’ have received EU endorsement and are
applicable for the financial year beginming 30 March 2014
They are not expected to have a matenal impact on the
Group

There are no other IFRS, IFRS IC interpretations or
amendments that have been 1ssued but are not yet
effective that would be expected to have a matenal impact
on the Group

The Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership has
taken an exemption under paragraph 7 of the Partnership
(Accounts) Regulations 2008 for the requirement to prepare
and deliver financial statements in accordance with the
Companies Act

A summary of the Company’s and the Group’s accounting
policies is given below

Accounting convention

The financial statements are drawn up on the historical cost
basis of accounting, as medified by financial assets and
financial habilibes {including denvative instruments) at far
value through profit and loss

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of Marks and Spencer plc and all its subsidiaries
made up to the year end date Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidianes to bring
the accounting policies used in ine with those used by the
Group
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Marks and Spencer plc

Notes to the financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Subsidianes

Subsidiary undertakings are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to
govem the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the
voting nghts Subsidiary undertakings acquired during the year
are recorded using the acquisition method of accounting and
their results are included from the date of acquisition

The separable net assets, including property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, of the newly acquired
subsidiary undertakings are incorporated into the consolidated
financial statements on the basis of the fair value as at the
effective date of control

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are ehminated

Revenue

Revenue comprises sales of goods to customers outside the
Group less an appropriate deduction for actual and expected
returns, discounts and loyalty scheme vouchers, and 15 stated
net of value added tax and other sales taxes Revenue is
recognised when goods are delivered and the significant nisks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer

Dividends

Final dividends are recorded in the financial statements in the
period in which they are approved by the Company's
shareholders Intenm dividends are recorded in the pencd in
which they are approved and paid

Pensions

Funded pension plans are in place for the Group's UK
employees and some employees overseas

For defined benefit pension schemes, the difference between
the fair value of the assets and the present value of the
defined benefit obligation 1s recogrused as an asset or hability
in the statement of financial position The defined benefit
obligation 15 actuanally calculated using the projected unit
credit method

The service cost of providing retrement benefits to employees
dunng the year, together with the cost of any benefits relating
to past service, 1s charged to operating profit in the year

The net interest cost on the net retirement benefit
asset/lability s calculated by applying the discount rate,
measured at the beginming of the year, to the net defined
benefit asset/hability and 1s included as a single net amount In
finance income

Remeasurements being actuanal gains and losses, tegether
with the difference between actual investment returns and the
return implied by the net interest cost, are recognised
immediately in the statement of comprehensive iIncome

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are charged as an expense as they fall due

Intangible assets

A Goodwill Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the
excess of the consideration transferred and the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree over the farr value of
the identifiable assets and habilities (including intangible
assets) of the acquired entity at the date of the acquisition
Goodwill 1s recogrised as an asset and assessed for
impairment annually or as tnggenng events occur Any
impairment 1s recognised immediately in the iIncome
statement

B Brands Acquired brand values are held on the statement of
financial position initially at cost Definite life intangibles are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives Indefinite life intangibles are tested for mparment
annually or as tnggernng everts occur Any impairment in
value ts recognised iImmediately in the income statement

C Software intangibles Where computer software is not an
integral part of a related item of computer hardware, the
software 1s treated as an intangible asset Capitalised software
costs Include external direct costs of goods and services, as
well as internal payroll related costs for employees who are
directly associated with the project

Capitalised software development costs are amortised on a
straight-ine basis over their expected economic lives, normally
between three and ten years Computer scftware under
devetopment 1s held at cost less any recognised impairment
loss Any impairment in value i1s charged to the income
statement

Property, plant and equipment

The Group's policy I1s to state propery, plant and equipment at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised
mpairment loss Property 1s not revalued for accounting
purposes Assets In the course of construction are held at cost
less any recognised impairment loss Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs

Depreciation 1s provided to wnite off the cost of tangible non-
current assets (including investment properties), less
estimated residual values, by equal annual instalments as
follows

+ freehold land — not depreciated,

s freehold and leasehold bulldings with a remaining
lease term over 50 years — depreciated to their
residual value over their estimated remaining
economic lives,

+ leasehold buildings with a remaining lease term of
less than 50 years — depreciated over the remaining
period of the lease, and

o fixtures, fitings and equipment — 3 to 25 years
according to the estimated hfe of the asset

Residual values and useful economic lives are reviewed
annually Depreciation 1s charged on all additions to, or
disposals of, depreciating assets in the year of purchase or
disposal

Any impairment in value 1s charged to the income statement
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Marks and Spencer pic

Notes to the financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Leasing

Where assets are financed by leasing agreements and the
risks and rewards are substantially transferred to the Group
{finance leases) the assets are treated as if they had been
purchased outnght, and the corresponding liability to the
leasing company 1s Included as an obligation under finance
leases Depreciation on leased assets 1s charged to the
income statement on the same basis as owned assets, unless
the term of the lease 1s shorter Leasing payments are treated
as consisting of capital and interest elements and the interest
is charged to the income statement

All other leases are operating leases and the costs in respect
of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over
the lease term The value of any lease incentive received to
take on an operating lease {for example, a rent free penod) Is
recognised as deferred income and 1s released over the life of
the lease

Leasehold prepayments

Payments made to acquire leasehold jand are included in
prepayments at cost and are amortised over the Iife of the
lease

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes short-term deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, with an initial matunty of
three months or less and credit card payments recewed within
48 hours

Inventories

Inventones are valued on a weighted average cost basis and
carned at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost
includes al! direct expenditure and other attnbutable costs
incurred in bringing inventories to their present focation and
condition All inventories are finished goods

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it 1s probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting peniod, and
are discounted to present value where the effect is matenal

Share-based payments

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain employees A fair value for the equity-settled share
awards 1s measured at the date of grant The Group measures
the fair value of each award using the Black-Scholes model
where appropriate

The fair value of each award i1s recognised as an expense
over the vesting period on a straight-line basis, after allowing
for an estimate of the share awards that will eventually vest
The leve! of vesting 15 reviewed annually and the charge 1s
adjusted 1o reflect actual and estimated levels of vesting

Forelgn currencies

The resulis of overseas subsidianes are translated at the
weighted average of monthly exchange rates for revenue and
profits The statements of financial position of overseas

subsidiaries are translated at year end exchange rates The
resulting exchange differences are dealt with through reserves
and reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
Income:

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Foreign
currency menetary assets and habilities held at the end of the
reporting period are transiated at the closing balance sheet
rate The resulting exchange gain or loss Is recognised within
the income statement

Taxation

Tax expense compnses current and deferred tax Tax is
recognised In the income statement, except to the extent it
relates to tems recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the related tax 1s also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directiy in
equity

Deferred tax 1s accounted for using a temporary difference
approach, and 15 the tax expecied to be payable or
recoverable on temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and habilittes in the statement of financial
position and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit Deferred tax s calculated based
on the expected manner of realisation or setllement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, applying tax rates
and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period

Deferred tax habilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences Deferred tax liabilities are recogmsed
for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except where the
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled by the
Group and 1t 1s probable that the difference will not reverse 1n
the foreseeable future

Deferred tax labiities are not recognised on temporary
differences that arise from goodwill which 1s not deductible for
tax purposes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it 1s probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utihised The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at the end of each
reperting period and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and habihttes are not recognised in
respect of temporary differences that anse on imitial
recognition of assets and habiliies acquired other thanin a
business combination

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Group's
statement of financial posthion when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

A Trade recevables Trade receivables are recorded initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
Generally, this results in their recognition at nominal value less
any allowance for any doubtful debts
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Marks and Spencer plic

Notes to the financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

B Investments and other financial assets Invesiments and
other financial assets are classtfied as either ‘available-for-
sale’ or ‘far value through profit or less’ They are imtially
measured at far value, including transaction costs, with the
exception of 'fair value through profit or loss' Financial assets
held at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value and transaction costs are expensed

Where secunties are designated as 'fair value through profit or
loss’, gans and losses ansing from changes n fair value are
inciuded 1n net profit or loss for the period For ‘available-for-
sale’ investments, gains or losses ansing from changes in far
value are recegnised In comprehensive income, unti! the
security 1s disposed of or 1s determined to be imparred, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
i comprehensive income I1s Included in the net profit or loss
for the period Equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured by other means are held at cost

C Classffication of financial liabilities and eguity Financial
habihties and equity instruments are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into An
equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabiities

D Bank borrowings Interest-beanng bank loans and
overdrafts are inthalty recorded at farr value, which equals the
proceeds received, net of direct 1Issue costs Finance charges,
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and
direct issue costs, are accounted for using an effective interest
rate method and are added to the carrying amount of the
instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period
in which they arise

E Loan notes Long-term loans are intially measured at far
value and are subsequently held at amortised cost unless the
loan 1s hedged by a derivative financial instrument in which
case hedge accounting treatment will apply

F Trade payables Trade payables are recorded initially at far
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
Generally this results in their recognition at their nominal
value

G Equity instruments Equity instruments 1ssued by the
Company are recorded at the consideration received, net of
direct 1ssue costs

Dervative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group pnimarily uses interest rate swaps and forward
foreign currency contracts to manage its exposures to
fluctuating interest and foreign exchange rates These
instruments are inthially recogrised at fair value on the trade
date and are subsequently remeasured at therr fair value at
the end of the reporting period The method of recognising the
resulting gain or foss I1s dependent on whether the derivative 1s
designated as a hedging instrument and the nature of the item
being hedged

The Group designates certain hedging denvatives as either

- ahedge of a highly probable forecast transaction or
change in the cash flows of a recognised asset or
liability {a cash flow hedge),

- a hedge of the exposure to change In the fair value
of a recognised asset or lability {a farr value hedge),
or

- ahedge of the exposure on the translation of net
investments in foreign entities (a net investment
hedge)

Underlying the definition of fair value 1s the presumption that
the Group I1s a going concern without any intention of
matenaily curtaiing the scale of its operations

At inception of a hedging relationship, the hedging instrument
and the hedged item are documented and prospective
effectiveness testing is performed Dunng the life of the
hedging relationship, effectiveness testing 1s continued to
ensure the instrument remains an effective hedge of the
transaction Changes in the fair value of denvative financial
instrurments that do not qualfy for hedge accounting are
recognised in the income statement as they arise

A Cash flow hedges Changes in the farr value of denvative
financial instruments that are designated and effective as
hedges of fulure cash flows are recogmsed in comprehensive
Income and any ineffective portion is recognised immediately
In the iIncome statement If the firm commitment or forecast
transaction that is the subject of a cash flow hedge results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset or hability, then, at the
time the asset or hability 1s recognised, the associated gains or
losses on the derivative that had previously been recogrised
In comprehensive income are included in the inial
measurement of the asset or hability

For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an asset or
a habilty, amounts deferred \n comprehensive income are
recognised in the income statement in the same period in
which the hedged items affect net profit or loss

B Fair value hedges For an effective hedge of an exposure to
changes in the fair value, the hedged item 1s adjusted for
changes In fair value attributable to the risk being hedged with
the corresponding entry in the income statement Gains and
losses from remeasuring the derivative, or for non-derivatives
the foreign currency component of the carrying amount, are
recognised in the income statement

C Net investment hedges Changes in the farr value of
dervative or non-derivative financial instruments that are
designated and effective as hedges of net investments are
recognised in comprehensive iIncome and any ineffective
portion 1s recognised immediately in the income statement

Changes In the fair value of derivative financial instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recogrused in the
income statement as they arnise

C Discontinuance of hedge accounting Hedge accounting 1s
discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold,
terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the
hedging instrument recognised in comprehensive iIncome 1s
retained in equity until the forecast transachion occurs Ifa
hedged transaction i1s no loenger expected to occur, the net
cumulative gain or loss recognised in comprehensive income
18 transferred to net profit or loss for the period

17




Marks and Spencer plc

Notes to the financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

The Group does not use denvatives to hedge income
statement translation exposures

Embedded denvatives

Dernivatives embedded in other financial mstruments or other
host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when their
nisks and charactenistics are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not camed at farr
value, with unrealised gans or losses reported 1n the income
statement Embedded dervatives are camed in the statement
of financial position at farr value from the inception of the host
contract

Changes in fair value are recognised within the income
statement dunng the penod m which they anse

Cntical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires
the Group to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reporied amounts Estimates and
Judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
histonical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
crcumstances Actual results may differ from these estimates
The estimates and assumptions which have a significant nsk
of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets and habilities are

A Impairment of goodwill and brands The Group s required to
test annually or as trggering events occur, whether the
goodwill or brands have suffered any imparment The
recoverable amount 1s determined based on value in use
calculations The use of this method reguires the estimation of
future cash flows and the choice of a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of these cash flows

Where there is a non-controlling interest, goodwill 1s tested for
the business as a whole This involves a notional increase to
goodwill, to reflect the non-controling shareholders' interest
Actual outcomes could vary from those calculated See note
13 for further details

B Impairment of property, plant and equipment and computer
software Property, plant and equipment and computer
software are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable When a review for impairment 1s conducted, the
recoverable amount is determined based on value in use
calculations prepared on the basis of management’s
assumplions and estimates See notes 13 and 14 for further
detatls

C Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
amortisation of computer software Depreciation and
amortisation 1s provided so as o write down the assets to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives as set out

above The selection of these residual values and estimated
lives reguires the exercise of management judgement See
notes 13 and 14 for further details

D Post-retirement benefits The determination of the pension
cost and defined benefit obhigation of the Group's defined
benefit pension schemes depends on the selection of cenain
assumptions which include the discount rate, inflation rate,
salary growth, mortality and expected return on scheme
assets Differences arising from actual expenences or future
changes 1n assumptions will be reflected in subsequent
penods See note 10 for further detaits of assumptions and
note 11 for cntical judgements associated with the Marks &
Spencer UK Pension Scheme interest in the Marks and
Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership

E Refunds and loyalty scheme accruals Accruals for sales
returns and deferred income n relation to loyalty scheme
redemptions are estimated on the basis of histancal returns
and redemptions and these are recorded sc as to aflocate
them to the same penod as the original revenue 1s recorded
These balances are reviewed regularly and updated to reflect
managemant’s latest best estmates However, actual returns
and redemptions could vary from those estimates

F Inventory valuation Inventones are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value, on a weighted average cost
basis which requires the estimation of the eventual sales price
of goods to customers in the future

Non GAAP performance measures

directors believe that the underlying profit and earnings per
share measures provide additional useful information for
shareholders on the underlying performance of the business
These measures are consistent with how underlying business
performance 1s measured internally The underlying profit
before tax measure 1s not a recognised profit measure under
IFRS and may not be directly comparable with adjusted profit
measures used by other companies The adjustments made to
reported profit before tax are to exclude the following

- profits and losses on the disposal of properties,

- one-off pension credits ansing on changes to the
defined benefit scheme rules and practices,

- interest relating to significant and one-off repayments
from tax itigation claims,

- restructuring costs,

- significant and one-off impairment charges that
distort underlying trading, fair value movement in
financial instruments,

- costs relating to strategy changes that are not
considered normal operating costs of the underlying
business, and

- adjustment in income from HSBC in refation to M&S
Bank due to a non recurring provision recogrised by
M&S Bank for the cost of providing redress to
customers in respect of possible mis-selling of M3S
Bank financial products
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Marks and Spencer plc

Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Segmental information

IFRS 8 requires cperating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reporting en components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the executive directors The executive directors review the Group's internal
reporting In order to assess performance and allocate resources across each operating segment The operating segments are UK and
International which are reported in a manner consistent with the mternal reporting to the executive directors

The UK segment consists of the UK retall business and UK franchise operations The International segment consists of Marks &
Spencer owned businesses in the Republic of Ireland, Europe and Asia, together with international franchise operations

The executive directors assess the performance of the operating segments based on a measure of operating profit This measurement
basis excludes the effects of non-undertying items from the operating segments Central ¢osts are all classified as UK costs and
presented within UK operating profit The executive directors also monitor revenue within the segments To increase transparency, the
Group has decided to include an additional voluntary disclosure analysing revenue within the reportable segments, by subcategory

The following 1s an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by reportable segment

2014 2013

Management Statutory

Manag Adjustment? Statutory (restated)® Adgustrent’ {restated)®

£m im fm £m £m £m

General Merchandise 4,094.5 (20) 4,092 5 4,090 3 36 4,093 9
Food 5,063 2 - 5,063 2 4,857 5 — 48575
UK revenue 9,157 7 9,155.7 39478 36 89514
Franchised 404 0 = 404.0 3926 - 3926
Owned 7500 - 750.0 6828 - 6828
International revenue 1,154 0 = 1,154.0 1,0754 - 1.0754
Group revenue 10,3117 (2 0) 10,309.7 10,0232 36 10,026 8
UK operating profit ' 6192 (18 9) 600 3 6584 {25 6) 6328
International operating profit 1227 {28 5) 94 2 1202 - 1202
Group operating profit 741 9 {47 4) 694 5 7786 {25 6) 7530
Finance income 201 49 250 124 - 124
Finance costs {139 1) - (139 1) (142 9} {75 3) (218 2)
Profit before tax 6229 {42 5) 580 4 6481 (100 9) 547 2

1 UK statutory profit ncludes £6 4m (last year £35 6m) in respect of fees recaved from HSBC in relation to M&S Bank {(formerly M&S Money) UK management operating profit
includes fees m relation to M&S Bank of £57 2m (last year £51 1m) wiuch reflects a non-GAAP adjustment of £50 8m {last year £15 5m} as detaled m note 5

2 Adjustments to revenue relate to an adusiment for refunds recogrmised in cost of sales for management accounting purposes Management profit excludes the adjustments (iIncome
or charges} made to reported profit before tax that ara one-off n nature significant and distort the Group s underlying performance (See note 5}

3 Restatament relates to the adoption of the rewised IAS 19 Employee Benefits (see note 1)

Other segmental information

2014 2013
UK , Total
UK International Total (restated)’? tnternational (restated)’

£rm £m £m £m £m

Additions to property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets (excluding goodwill) 688 6 651 7537 7616 597 8213
Depreciation and amortisation 4349 344 4693 _ 4217 288 4505
Imparrment and asset wnte-offs 213 139 352 96 72 168
Total assets  _ 7.4114 _ 4916 _ 7,903 0 71217 4830 7.6107
Non-current assets 6,157 6 376.9 6,534 5 5,965 4 3774 63428

1 Restatement relates to the adoption of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits {see note 1)
Re-presentation of the pnor year for an adjustment relabing to an mtercompany offset between UK and Internatonal segmental assets whilst not affectng total assets
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3 Expense analysis

2014 2013
Underiying Total
restated)’ Adjustment {r d)*
Undedylir:g Adjustnlez:: Tu[:: ( Er:'l I P { Er?n
Revenue 10,309.7 - 10,309.7 10,026 8 - 10,026 8
Cost of sal (6,439 0) - {6,439 0) (6,230 3) - 6,230 3)
Gross profit 3,8707 - 3,870.7 3,796 5 - 3,796 5
Selling and administrative expenses (3,224 3} = (3,224 3) (3110 0) - (3,110 0)
Other operating Income 955 - 955 921 - 821
Non-GAAP adjustments {o underlying profit (see
note 5) - {47 4) (47 4) = (25 6) (25 6)
Operating profit 741 9 (47 4) 694 5 7786 (25 6) 7530
The selling and administrative expenses are further analysed below
2014 2013
Total Totat
{restated)’
£m £m
Employee costs (see note 9A) 1,4109 1,324 2
QOccupancy costs 68907 6512
Repairs, renewals and maintenance of property 1021 967
Depreciation, amortisation and asset write-offs 477.8 4632
Other costs 542 8 5747
Selling and admimistrative expenses 3,224.3 3,1100
1 Restatement relates to the adoption of the revised IAS 19 Employes Benefits’ (see note 1)
4 Profit before taxation
The following items have been included in arriving at profit before taxation
2014 2013
im £m
Net foreign exchange gains {51) -
Cost of inventones recognsed as an expense _5,8035 56396
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment
— owned assets 3725 364 2
— under finance leases 72 99
Amaortisation of intangible assets 89.6 764
Profit on property disposals _(822) -
QOperating lease rentals payable
— property 3125 2939
- fixtures, fitings and equipment 29 472
Included in administrative expenses 1s the auditors’ remuneration, including expenses for audit and non-audit services, payable to the
Company's auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and its associates as follows
2014 2013
£fm £m
Annual audit of the Company and the consolidated financial statements __ 05 05
Audit of subsidiary companies 04 05
Other assurance services 02 02
Tax comphance services 0.3 03
Tax advisory services 0.4 03
Other non-audit services 04 05
22 23
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5 Non-GAAP performance measures

The adjustments made to reporied profit before tax are income and charges that are one-off in nature, significant and distort the Group's
underlying performance These adjustments mclude

The profit on property disposal relates to the sale of a warehouse site and mock shop n White City on 26 July 2013 to St James
Group Ltd for a total consideration of £100m, £25m receved on completion and the remaining consideration to be deferred over three
years The property has been leased back to Marks and Spencer plc for a penod of five years and has been recognised as an
operating lease,

Pension credit arising from changes to the Marks and Spencer Ireland defined benefit scheme rules (£17 5m} whereby the

discretions for post retirement pension increases have been removed and pension credit ansing from the cessation of the practice of
granting pension increases to transferred-in pensions for all members in the UK defined benefit scheme (£10 Om),

Interest income (net of fees) on tax repayment relating to the successful outcome of htigation in relation to the Group's claim for UK
tax relief of losses of its former European subsidianes Refer to note 7,

Restructurning costs relating to the Group’s strategy to transition to a one-tier distnbution network and the closure costs of the legacy
logistics site (£53 2m), and restructuring costs in Ireland following a thorough commercial review of the Ireland business (£24 1m)
This includes costs relating to the closure of four stores, redundancies and other associated costs,

Internatronal store review relates to the impairment of assets (£13 6m) and onerous lease provistons {£8 3m} in poor performing
international stores in non-strategic locations 1n China and the Czech Group,

IAS 39 fair value movement of the embedded dernvative in a lease contract based upon the expected future RPI versus the lease
contract in which rent increases are capped at 2 5%, with a floor of 1 5%,

Strategic programme costs relating to the strategy announcements made in November 2010 and include the costs associated with the
initial Foeus on the UK plans This includes asset wnite-offs and accelerated depreciation These costs are not considered normal
operating costs of the business We do not anticipate incurring any further costs in retation to this programme,

Fair value movement of the Puttable Callable Reset medium-term notes (PCR notes) realised on the repurchase of debt —in
December 2007 the Group 1ssued £250m of 30 year puttable callable bonds which included a coupon rate reset after fica years based
on a fixed underlying 25 year interest rate On this basis the rate was reset at 9% In light of continued low long-term market interest
rates and the successful bond issuance in December 2012, the Group bought back and cancelled these bonds in January 2013,
resulting in a one-off fair value loss This change 1s the fair value movement of the bond net of any immateral associated unamortised
bond costs and fees [t 1s not considered a normal fibond cost of the business,

The Group has an economic interest in M&S Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC, by way of a Relationship Agreement that
enbitles the Group to a 50% share of the profits of M&S Bank after appropnate deductions The Group does not share in any losses of
MA&S Bank and 1s not obliged to refund any fees received from HSBC although future iIncome may be impacted by significant one-off
deductions Last year, M&S Bank recognised an estimated liability for redress to customers in respect of possible mis-selling of
financial products in its audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 with a further estimated fiability in its
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 The Group's fee income from M&S Bank has been reduced by the
deduction of this estimated liability (under the Relationship Agreement) in both the current and prior year and this reduction has been
treated as an adjustment to reported profit before tax on the basis that the directors  believe that the impact of the provision
recogmised by M&S Bank matenally distorts the Group’s underlying performance We are continuing discussions with M&S Bank to
determine whether these charges are properly for our account under the terms of our agreement with HSBC

The adjustments made to reported profit before tax to arrive at underlying profit are

2014 2013

Note £m £m

Profit on property disposat 4 822 -
UK and Ireland one-off pension credits 10 275 -
Interest income on tax repayment net of fees 6,7 33 -
Restructurning costs 14, 21 (77 3) (9 3)
International store review 14, 21 (21 9) -
IAS 39 Fair value movement of embedded derwative 20 {3 5) 58
Strategic programme costs {2 0} {6 6)
Farr value movement on buy back of the Puttable Callable Reset medium-term notes 6,19 - {75 3)
Reduction 1n M&S Bank income for the impact of the financial product mis-selling provision 2 (50 8) {15 5)
Total adjustments (42 5) (100 9)
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6 Finance income/costs

2014 201:-:
{restated)
£m £m
Bank and other interest recewvable 84 53
Pension net finance income (see note 10E) 117 71
Underlying finance income 201 124
Interest iIncome on tax repayment (see note 7) 49 —
Finance income 25.0 124
Interest on bank borrowings (33) (21)
Interest payable on syndicated bank facility (50) 61
Interest payabte on medium-term notes (110 5) (114 3)
Interest payable on finance leases (23) (2 8)
Unwind of discount on financial instruments {02) (10)
Unwinding of discount on partnership hability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme {17 8) (16 6)
Underlying finance costs (139 1) (142 9)
Fair value movement on buy back of the Puttable Callable Reset medium-term notes - (75 3)
Finance costs (139 1) (218 2)
Net finance costs (114 1) (205 8)
1 Restatement relates to the adopbon of the revised IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits (sea note 1)
7 Income tax expense
A Tax charge
04 (raslafeoc‘ll):z
£m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the year at 23% (last year 24%)
— current year 971 1255
— adjustments in respect of prior years (39 1) (41 3})
UK current tax 580 842
QOverseas current taxation
— current year 145 128
— adjustments in respect of pner years (27) 38
Total current taxation 698 100 8
Deferred tax
- ongination and reversal of temporary differences 177 (6 6)
- adjustments n respect of prior years 262 (28)
— changes In tax rate {22 6) {(57)
Total deferred tax (see note 22) 213 {151)
Total income tax expense 911 857
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7 Income tax expense continued

B Tax reconclliation

The effective tax rate was 15 7% (last year 15 9%) and 1s reconciled below

2014 (res!af::l;
£m £m
Profit before tax 580 4 547 2
Notiona! taxation at the standard UK corporation tax rate of 23% (last year 24%) 1335 1315
Depreciation and other amounts in relation to fixed assets that do not qualify for tax relief 43 30
Other income and expenses not taxable or allowable for tax purposes (54} (8 1)
Retranslation of deferred tax balances due to the change in statutory UK tax rates (22 5) 54
Overseas profits taxed at rates different to those of the UK (3.7 (4 0)
Overseas tax losses where there 1s no relief anticipated 1n the foreseeable future 87 93
Adjustments to current and deferred tax charges in respect of prior periods 28 12 4)
Adjustments to underlying profit
- international store review charges where no tax relief 1s avallable 49 -
- property disposal gain covered by other losses ansing in the year {13 0) -
— deferred tax rate change benefit .- (03)
Non-underlying adjustment to current and deferred tax charges n respect of prior periods (18 5) {27 9)
Total income tax expense 911 857

1 Restatement ralales to the adoption of the revised IAS 19 Employea Benefits (see note 1)

After excluding non-underlying items the underlying effective tax rate was 18 9% (last year 17 6%)

The non-underlying adjustment to the tax charge n respect of prior perods anses from the successful outcome of htigation in relation to
the Group's claim for UK tax relief of losses of its former European subsidiaries (£18 5m, last year £mil)

On 2 July 2013, the Finance Bill recewved its final reading in the House of Commons and so the previously announced reduced rates of
corporation tax of 21% from 1 Apnl 2014 to 31 March 2015 and 20% from 1 Apnl 2015 onwards were substantively enacted The Group
has remeasured its UK deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period at 20%, which has resulted in the recognition of
a deferred tax credit of £22 5m n the income statement {reducing the total effective tax rate by 3 9%}, and the recognition of a deferred

tax credit of £11 3m in other comprehensive income

8 Dividends
2013 2014 2013
per share per share £m £m
Dividends on equity ordinary shares
Paid final dividend 61p 173 9 1739
Paid ntenm dividend 35p 997 997
9 8p 2736 2736

The directors have proposed a final dividend n respect of the year ended 29 March 2014 of 6 2p per share amounting to a dividend of
£176 7m In ine with the requirements of IAS 10 — 'Events after the reporting penod’, this dvidend has not been recognised within these

results
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9 Employees ’

A Aggregate remuneration
The aggregate remuneration and associated costs of Group employees were

2013
2014 Total
Total {restated)’
£m £m
Wages and salares 1,1975 11367
Social security costs 859 758
Pension costs 924 714
Share-based payments (see note 12) 213 258
Employee welfare and other personnel costs 495 510
Capitalised staffing costs (357) (36 5)
Total aggregate remuneration 1,410 9 13242
1 Reslatement relates to the adoption of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits (see note 1)
Detatls of key management compensation are given in note 27
B Average monthly number of employees
2014 2013
UK stores _
— management and supervisory categories 5,533 5,511
— other 67,678 65,053
UK head office
— management and supervisory categories : 3,176 2,975
— other 724 790
UK operations
— management and supervisory categones 92 58
- other 660 132
Overseas 7,950 7,215
Total average number of employees 85,813 81,734
If the number of hours worked was converted on the basis of a normal working week, the equivalent average number of full-time
employees would have been 61,176 {last year 57,518)
C Directors’ emoluments
Emoluments of directors of the Company are summarised below
2014 2013
£000 £000
Highest pard director 1,305 1,919
Aggregate emoluments 2,035 2,730

One director (last year nil) accrued retirement benefits under a defined benefit scheme
Qne director (last year nil) exercised share options in relation to the Group's long-term incentive plans

Five directors (last year four) were awarded options 1n relation to the Group's long-term incentive plans

The highest paid director exercised share options duning the year {last year nil) and was awarded options in refation to the Group's long-

term incentive plans The highest paid director did not accrue any retirement benefits under a defined benefit scheme (last year nil)
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10 Retirement benefits

The Group provides penston arrangements for the benefit of its UK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (a
defined benefit arrangement which was closed to new entrants with effect from 1 Aprl 2002} and Your M&S Pension Saving Plan (a
defined contribution arrangement which has been open to new members with effect from 1 Apnl 2003)

The defined contnbution plan 1s a pension plan under which the Group pays contnbutions to an independently administered fund such
contnbutions are based upon a fixed percentage of employees’ pay The Group has no legal or constructive obtigations to pay further
contributions to the fund once the contributions have been paid Members’ benefits are determined by the amount of contributions paid
by the Group and the member, together with investment returns earned on the contributions anising from the performance of each
individual's chosen investments and the type of pension the member chooses to buy at retirement As a result, actuanal risk {that
benefits will be lower than expected) and investment nsk {that assets invested in will not perform in ine with expectations) fall on the
employee

The defined benefit arrangement operates on a final salary basis and at the year end had some 13,000 active members (last year
13,000), 55,000 deferred members (last year 55,000) and 51,000 pensioners (last year 51,000) At the year end, the defined
contribution arrangement had some 38,000 active members (last year 33,000) and some 5,000 deferred members (last year 3,000)
The scheme 18 governed by a Trustee board which i1s independent of the Group

The Group also operates a small funded defined benefit pension scheme in the Republic of Iretand This scheme ceased to future
accrual from 31 October 2013 Retirement benefits also include a UK post-retirement healthcare scheme and unfunded retirement
benefits

Within the total Group retrement benefit cost of £53 5m (last year restated £64 3m), £27 Om (last year restated £40 Om) relates to the
UK defined benefit section, £41 7m (last year £20 3m) to the UK defined contribution section and £(15 2)m (last year £4 Om) to other
retirement benefit schemes

The most recent actuanal valuation of the UK Defined Benefit Pension Scheme was carned out at 31 March 2012 and showed a deficit
of £290m As a result a funding plan of £112m cash contributions was agreed with the Trustees The Group has contnbuted ¢ £28m to
the UK defined benefit scheme on 31 March 2014 and expects to contribute an additional ¢ £28m each year untid 31 March 2017 The
difference between the valuation and the funding plan i1s expected to be met by better than expected investment returns on the
scheme's assets Future contnbutions to meet the cost of accruing benefits to the UK scheme are made at the rate of 23 4% of
pensionable salares up to the next full actuanal valuation

By funding its defined benefit pension schemes, the Group s exposed to the nisk that the cost of meeting its obligatiens 1s higher than
anticipated This could occur for several reasons, for example

- Invesiment returns on the schemes’ assets may be lower than anticipated, especially if falls in asset values are not matched by
simular falls 1n the value of the schemes’ habilities,

- The level of price inflation may be higher from that assurned, resulting in higher payments from the schemes,

- Scheme members may live longer than assumed, for example due to unanticipated advances in medical healthcare Members may
also exercise (or not exercise) options i a way that leads to increases in the schemes’ habilities, for example through early
retirement or commutation of pension for cash,

- Legislative changes could also lead to an increase in the schemes’ liabnlities

in addition, the Group has an obligation to the UK defined benefit scheme wvia the interest in the Scottish Limited Partnership (refer to
note 12}, through which the Group 15 exposed to additionat nisks In particular, under the legal terms of the Partnership, a default by the
Group on the rental payments to the Partnership or a future change in legislation could tngger earlier or higher payments, or an
increase in the collateral to be provided by the Group

A Pensions and other post-retirement abilities

2013

2014 (restated)"
£m £m
Total market value of assets 6,729 4 69300
Present value of scheme liabilities (6,528.7) (6,680 9)
Net funded pension plan asset 2007 2491
Unfunded retirement benefits - (0.7) (08)
Post-retirement healthcare {11.0) (123)
Net retirement benefit asset 1890 2360
Analysed In the statement of financial position as
Retirement benefit asset 2007 2491
Retrrement benefit deficit (11 7) {13 1)
1890 2360

1 Restatenent relates to the adopbon of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits (see note 1)
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10 Retirement benefits continued

B Financial assumptions

The financial assumptions for the UK scheme and the most recent actuanal valuations of the other post-retirement schemes have been
updated by independent qualified actuares to take account of the requirements of IAS 19 — ‘Employee Benefits’ in order to assess the
habilities of the schemes and are as follows

2014 2013

% %

Rate of increase in salanes 10 10
Rate of increase n pensions in payment for service 22-33 24-32
Discount rate 4 45 43
Inflation rate 34 34
Long-term healthcare cost increases 74 71

The inflation rate of 3 4% reflects the Retall Price Index {(RPI) rate Certain benefits have been calculated with reference to the
Consumer Price Index (CPI) as the inflationary measure and in these instances a rate of 2 4% (last year 2 4%) has been used

The amount of the surplus vanes if the main financial assumptions change, particularly the discount rate If the discount rate
increased/decreased by 0 5% the surplus would increase/decrease by ¢ £50m If the inflation rate increased by 0 25%, the surplus
would decrease by ¢ £50m

C Demographic assumptions

Apart from post retirement mortahty, the demographic assumptions are In ine with those adopted for the last formal actuanal valuation
of the scheme performed as at 31 March 2012 The post-retirement mortality assumptions are based on an analysis of the pensioner
mortality trends under the scheme for the penod to March 2012 updated to allow for anticipated longewity improvements over the
subsequent years The specific mortality rates used are based on the VITA tables, adjusted to allow for the expenence of scheme
penswners The Iife expectancies underlying the valuation are as follows

2014 2013

Current pensioners {at age 65) — males 224 224
- females 241 241

Future pensioners (at age 65) ~ males 218 218
- females 246 245

Deferred pensioners (at age 65) - males 226 225
- females 254 254

An increase of one year in the hfe expectancies would decrease the surplus by ¢ £230m
D Analysis of assets

The investment strategy of the UK defined benefit pension scheme is driven by its liability profile, in particular its inflabon-linked
pension benefits [n addition to its interest in the Scotiish Limited Partnership {refer to note 11), the scheme invests in different types of
bonds (including corporate bonds and gilts} and derivative instruments (including inflation, interest rate, cross-currency and total return
swaps) In order to align movements in the value of its assets with movements in its habilities ansing from changes in market conditions
Broadly the scheme has hedging that covers 80% of interest rate movements and 84% of inflation movements, as measured on the
Trustee’s funding assumptions which use a discount rate denved from gilt yields

The farr vatue of the plan assets at the end of the reporting peniod for each category, are as follows

2014 2013
(restated
£m im
Debt investments . . )
- Government 2,3190 2,531 0
— Corporale Bonds _1,2887 1,254 0
- Asset backed secunties and structured debt 2320 2078
Scottish Limited Partnership interest {(see note 11) B B - 5747 6457
Equity investments — quoted ’ 998 1 906 7
Equity investments — unguoted 1101 14286
Property T 2786 208 8
Dernvatives
— Interest and inflation rate swap contracts - " 513 3243
- Foreign exchange contracts and other denvatives 1233 167 9
Hedge and remsurance funds ’ - 3298 3247
Cash and cash equivalents 444 1 1599
Other ~ - 127 56 6
6,729.4 6,9300

1 Restaternent relates to the adoption of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits (see note 1)
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40 Retirement benefits continued

D Analysis of assets continued

The farr values of the above equity and debt investments are determined based on publicly available market prices wherever avalable
Unguoted investments, hedge funds and reinsurance funds are stated at farr value estimates provided by the manager of the
investment or fund Property includes both quoted and unquoted mvestments The market value of the Scottish Limited Partnership
interest 1s based on the expected cash flows and benchmark asset-backed credit spreads It 1s the policy of the Scheme to hedge a
proportion of interest rate and inflation nsk The Scheme reduces its forewgn currency exposure using forward foreign exchange
contracts

At year end, the UK scheme indirectly held 199,523 (last year 150,955) ordinary shares in the Company through its investment in UK
Equity Index Funds

E Analysis of amount charged against profils
Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of defined benefit plans are as follows

2013
2014 (restated)’
fm Em
Current service cost 887 68 8
Admnistration costs 30 30
Past service costs — curtalment charge 10 10
Past service cost — plan amendments - (14)
UK and Ireland one-off pension credits (27 5) -
Net interest income (11 7) (7 1)
Total 535 64 3
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit surplus
Actual return on scheme assets excluding amounts included in net interest income (3220) 6253
Actuanal (loss) - expenence (17 4)_ {11 0)
Actuanal {loss) — demographic assumptions - {80 Q)
Actuarnial gain/(loss) - financial assumptiens 2541 (428 5)
Components of defined benefit cost recognized in other comprehensive income (85 3) 1058
Total (31 8) 1701
1 Restatement relates to the adopbion of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefils (seendte 1)
F Scheme assets
Changes in the fair value of the scheme assets are as follows
2013
2014 {restated)’
Em Em
Fair value of scheme assets at start of year 6,9300 6,186 4
Interest income based on discount rate 2940 2820
Actual return on scheme assets excluding amounts included in net interest income’ ) (322 0) 6253
Employer contributions - 921 709
Benefits paid (261 2) (234 0)
Administration costs (30) (30)
Exchange movement (0 5) 24
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year 6,729.4 6,930 0

1 Restatement refatas to the adoption of the revised IAS 18 Employes Benefits {sae note 1)
2 The actual returm on scheme assets was a l0ss of £28m (last year restated return of £807m) Restatement relates to the adoption of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits {see note 1)
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10 Retirement benefits continued

G Pensions and other post-retirement liabilities
Changes in the present value of retrement benefit obligations are as follows

2013

2014 {restated)'
fm £m
Present value of obligation at start of year 6,694 0 6,063 4
Current service cost 887 688
Curtallment charge . 10 10
Past service cost - (14)
One-off UK and Ireland pension credits {ncte 5) (27 5) -
Interest cost 2823 2749
Benefits paid ) (261 2) (234 0)
Actuarnial foss — expenence 174 110
Actuanal loss — demographic assumptions - 800
Actuarial {gain)/loss — financial assumptions (254 1) 428 5
Exchange movement {02) 18
Present value of obhgation at end of year 6,540 4 6,694 0
Analysed as o
Present value of pension scheme liabilities 6,528 7 6,6809
Unfunded pension plans e7 o8
Post-retirement healthcare 110 123
Present value of obligation at end of year 6,540 4 6.694 0

1 Rastatement relates to the adoption of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits (see note 1}

The average duration of the defined benefit obhgation at 29 March 2014 1s 18 years (last year 18 years)

11 Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme interest in the Scottish Limited Partnership

Marks and Spencer plc 1s a general pariner and the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 15 a imited partner of the Marks and
Spencer Scottish Limited Partinership (the Partnership) As such, the Partnership 1s consolidated into the results of the Group

The Partnership holds £1 6bn {last year £1 €bn) of properties which have been leased back to Marks and Spencer plc at market rates
The Group retains control over these properties, including the flexibility to substitute alternative properites The hmited partnership
interest (held by the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme) entitles the Pension Scheme to recewve an annual distribution of £71 9m
from the profits of the Partnership earned from rental income

This distnbution was discretionary at the instance of Marks and Spencer plc On 21 May 2012 the Group changed the terms of the
Partnership to waive the Group's imited discretionary nght over the annual distnbuttons from the Partnership to the Pension Trustee
The change was reflected by the derecognition of the related equity instruments and recognition of a financial Lability from this date
The Partnership liability to the Marks and Spencer UK pensicn scheme of £568 7m 1s valued at the net present value of the future
expected distrbutions from the Partnership

During the year to 29 March 2014 an interest charge of £17 8m (last year £16 6m) was recognised in the income statement
representing the unwinding of the discount included In this obligation

Under IAS 19, the Partnership interest of the Pension Scheme tn the Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership 1s included within
the UK pension scheme assets, valued at £574 7m (last year £645 7m), refer to note 10D
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12 Share-based payments

The charge for share-based payments for the year was £21 3m (last year £25 8m) Of the total share-based payments charge, £9 6m
(last year £13 4m) relates to the Save As You Earn Share Option scheme The remaining charge 1s spread over the other schemes
Further details of the option and share schemes that the Group operates are provided in the Remuneration Report on pages 52 to 77
of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report, which does not form part of this report

A Save As You Earn Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the scheme, the Board may offer options to purchase ordinary shares in the Company once in each financial year to
those employees who enter into an HM Revenue & Custorns {HMRC) approved Save As You Earn (SAYE) savings contract HMRC
rules iimit the maximum amount saved to £250 per menth The price at which options may be offered 1s 80% of the average mid-
market price for three consecutive dealing days preceding the offer date The options may normally be exercised during the six month
period after the completion of the SAYE contract, erther three or five years after entening the scheme

2014 2013

Weighted Weighted

Number of average Number of averaga

options exercise price options exercisa pnce

Outstanding at beginning of the year 45,273,287 _ 265 2p 47,245,342 259 3p
Granted 9,992,932 405 Op 9,977,206 312 Op
Exercised {16,921,571) 2377p (7.369,406) 266 0p
Forfeited (3,058,210) 300 6p (3,575.404) 273 3p
Expired (862,516) 450 2p  (1,004,451) 418 0p
Qutstanding at end of the year 34,423,922 311 6p 45273287 265 2p
Exercisable at end of year 1,879,073 253 3p 1,700,575 366 9p

For SAYE share options exercised duning the penod, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 448 1p (last year
370 4p)

The farr values of the options granted duning the year have been calculated using the Black-Scholes model assurming the inputs shown
below

2014 2013

3-year plan 3-yaar plan

Grant date Nov 13 Nov 12
Share price at grant date 506p 389p
Exercise pnce 405p 312p
Optlion Iife in years 3 years 3 years
Risk-free rate 08% 03%
Expected volatility 24 2% 252%
Expected dividend yield 3 4% 44%
Farr value of option 105p 74p

Volatility has been estimated by taking the historic volatility in the Company’s share price over a three year penod

The resulting fair value 1s expensed over the service peniod of three years on the assumption that 10% (last year 10%) of options wall
lapse over the service penod as employees leave the Group

Qutstanding options granted under the UK Employees’ SAYE Scheme are as follows

Warghted average

remaining contractual

Number of options Ife (years)
Options granted 2014 2013 2014 2013 Option pnce
January 2008 - 617,258 - 03 517p
January 2008 . 1,241,356 12,912,056 03 13 203p
January 2010 497 941,711 - 03 292p
January 2011 _ 791,518 5,315,855 03 13 319p
January 2012 14,423,919 15817394 13 23 258p
January 2013 o 8,353,334 9,669,013 _ 23 33 312p
January 2014 9,613,298 - 33 - 405p
34,423,022 45273,287 20 20 312p
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12 Share-based payments continued

B Performance Share Plan*

The Performance Share Plan 1s the pnmary long-term incentive plan for approximately 100 of the most senior managers and was first
approved by shareholders in 2005 Under the plan, annual awards, based on a percentage of salary, may be offered The extent to
which the awards vest is based on cumulative underlying basic earnings per share, return on capital employed, and revenue over three
years The value of any dividends earned on the vested shares dunng the three years will also be paid on vesting Further detalls are
set out In the Remuneration Report on pages 66 to 67 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report Awards under this scheme
have been made in each year since 2005

During the year, 7,113,690 shares (last year 9,333,652) were awarded under the Plan The weighted average fair value of the shares
awarded was 440 7p (last year 329 7p) As at 29 March 2014, 21,170,536 shares (last year 21,492 ,589) were cutstanding under the
scheme

C Deferred Share Bonus Plan*

The Deferred Share Bonus Plan was introduced in 2005/06 as part of the Annual Bonus Scheme for approximately 450 of the most
semor managers As part of the scheme, the managers are required to defer a proportion of any bonys paid into shares which will be
held for three years There are no further performance conditions on these shares, other than continued employment and the value of
any dividends earned during the deferred penod will be paid on vesting

During the year, 1,658,133 shares (last year 1,181,637) have been awarded under the plan in relation to the annual bonus The fair
value of the shares awarded was 437 Op {last year 325 ip} As at 29 March 2014, 5,024,149 shares (last year 6,576,038) were
outstanding under the scheme

D Restricted Share Plan*

The Restncted Share Plan was established in 2000 as parl of the reward strategy for retention and recruitment of senior managers who
are vital to the success of the business The Plan operates for senior managers below executive director level Awards under the Pian
are made as part of ongoing reviews of reward packages, and for recruitment The shares are held in trust for a period of between one
and three years, at which point they are released to the employee subject to them still being in employment The value of any dividends
earned during the restnicted period will alsc be paid at the time of vesting

During the year, 798,196 shares (last year 1,257,044) have been awarded under the plan The weighted average far value of the
shares awarded was 479 2p (last year 371 Op) As at 20 March 2014, 2,271,826 shares (last year 3,177,564) were outstanding under
the scheme

E Republic of Ireland Save As You Earn Scheme

Sharesave, the Company's Save As You Earn Scheme was introduced in 2009 to all employees in the Republic of Ireland for a ten
year penod, after approval by shareholders at the 2009 AGM The scheme 1s subject to Insh Revenue rules which imit the maximum
monthly saving to €500 per month The Company chose in 2009 to set a monthly savings cap of €320 per month to align the maximum
savings amount allowed within the UK scheme When the savings contract 1s started, options are granted to acquire the number of
shares that the total savings will buy when the contract matures, at a discounted price set at the start of the scheme The price at which
the options may be offered 1s 80% of the average mid-market prnce for three consecutive days preceding the offer date Options cannot
normally be exercised until a minimum of three years has elapsed

During the year, 62,734 options (last year 147,557} options were granted, at a fair value of 105 1p (last year 73 8p) As at 29 March
2014, 251,545 options (last year 400,174) were outstanding under the scheme

F Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust

The Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust (the Trust) holds 2,595,343 shares {last year 8,046,847) with a book value of £8 6m
(last year £26 9m) and a market value of £11 8m (last year £31 4m)} These shares were acquired by the Trust in the market and are
shown as a reduction in retained earnings In the consolidated statement of financial position |n addition, the Trust has entered into a
call option to purchase up to 1,600,000 of the Company's shares expinng June 2014 The Trust used funds provided by Marks and
Spencer plc to meet the Group's obligations Awards are granted to employees at the discretion of Marks and Spencer plc and shares
awarded to employees by the Trust in accordance with the wishes of Marks and Spencer plc under senior executive share schemes
Dividends are waived on all of these plans

*Nil cost options

For the purposes of calculating the number of shares awarded, the share price used 1s the average of the mid-market price for the five
consecutive dealing days preceding the grant date
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13 Intangible assets

Computer
Computer  software under
Goodwill Brands software development Total
&m £m £m Em Em
At 31 March 2012
Cost or valuation 1270 112 4 5354 741 848 ¢
Accumulated amortisation and impairment {(344) {39 9) (190 3) - {264 6)
Net beook value 926 725 3451 741 5843
Year ended 30 March 2013
Opening net book value 926 725 3451 741 5843
Additions - - 502 1369 1871
Transfers - - 278 (27 8) -~
Amortisation charge - {53) (71 1) - (76 4)
Closing net book value 926 67 2 3520 1832 6950
At 30 March 2013
Cost or valuation 1270 1124 6134 183 2 1,036 0
Accumulated amorhisation and impairment (34 4) (45 2) {261 4) - {341 0)
Net book value 926 67 2 3520 1832 6950
Year ended 29 March 2014 )
Opening net book value 926 67 2 3520 183.2 6950
Additions 33 - 1280 726 2039
Transfers - - 1374 (137 4) -
Amortisation charge - _ (53 (84 3) - (89 6)
Exchange difference (07) - {0 2) - (0 9)
Closing net book value 952 619 5329 118 4 808 4
At 29 March 2014
Cost or valuation 1296 112 4 8786 _ 1184 12390
Accumulated amortisation and impawrment - (34.9) (50 5) (345 7) - (430.6)_
Net book value 952 619 5329 1184 808 4
Goodwill and indefirute ife intangibles relate to the following business units
Marks and
Marks and Spencer Supreme Spencer M&S Mode
Czech Republic Trademarks {Hungary) Indefimite life
per una as Private Limited KFT Total goodwall intangible
£m im £m £m £m £m
Net book value at 30 March 2013 69.5 154 7.7 - 926 324
Additions - - - 33 33 -
Impairment - - - - - -
Exchange difference - 0.1 (0 8) - 07) -
Net book value at 29 March 2014 B 69.5 15.5 6.9 3.3 952 324

Impairment testing

Goodwill 13 not amortised, but tested annually for impairment with the recoverable amount being determined from value In use
calculations Goodwill has been allocated for impaimment testing purposes to groups of cash-generating umits (CGUs) which include the
combined retall and wholesale businesses for each location

Brands consist of the per una brand cost of £80 Om and the M&S Mode brands of £32 4m The per una brand i1s a definite hife
intangible asset and 1s amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 15 years and 1s only assessed for impairment where such
indicators exist The M&S Mode brands have been attnbuted an indefinite Iife as they give the Group the future nght to use the ‘M&S’
brand across Europe This 1s consistent with the Group's expansion plans in Europe and existng M&S brand recognition from its
curreni presence Similar to goodwill, the M&S Mode brands are assessed for imparment annually based on therr value in use The
M&S Mode brands have been allocated for impairment testing across the European business

The value 1n use calculations use cash flows based on detailed financial budgets prepared by management covering a three year
period These budgets have regard to tustoric performance and knowledge of the current market, together with management’s views
on the future achievable growth and ihe impact of committed initiatives The cash flows which denve from the budgets include ongoing
capital expenditure required to maimntain the stare network Cash flows beyond this three year penod are extrapolated using a long-term
growth rate
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13 Intangible assets continued

Impairrment testing continued

The key assumptions in the vatue in use calculations are the long-term growth rate and the nisk adjusted pre-tax discount rate The
long-term growth rate has been determined with reference to forecast GDP growth for the temtones in which these businesses
operate Management believe this 1s the most appropriate indicator of long-term growth rates that1s available The long-term growth
rate used 1s purely for the impaimment testing of goodwill and brands under IAS 36 — ‘Impairment of Assets’ and does not reftect long-
term planning assumptions used by the Group for investment proposals or for any other assessments These growth rates do not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the Group'’s retail businesses The pre-tax discount rate 1s based on the Group’s
weighted average cost of capital, taking intc account the cost of capital and borrowings, to which specific market-related premium
adjustments are made

The values attributed to the key assumptions are as follows

Long-term qrowth rate Pre-tax__

2014 2013 2014 2013

% o 9%, %
per una 20 20 _ 11.0 107
Marks and Spencer Czech Republca s 25 15 13.1 122
Supreme Trademarks Private Limited 60 60 18.3 17 4
Marks and Spencer {Hungary) KFT 15 - 17.0 -

The M&S Mode brands are tested based on the regions operating in the European business The discount rates used to calculate
vaiue in use range from 13 1% to 28 9% (last year 12 2% to 20 9%) Cash flows beyond the three year penod have been extrapolated
at long-term growth rates ranging from 1 0% to 2 5% (last year mi% to 1 5%)

Sensitivity analysis

Whilst management beleve the assumptions are realistic it 1s possible that an impairment would be 1dentified If any of the above key
assumptions were changed significantly A sensitivity analysis has been performed on each of these key assumptions with other
vanables held constant Management have concluded that there are no reascnably possible changes in any key assumptions that
would cause the carrying amount of goodwill or brands to exceed the value in use

32




Marks and Spencer plc

Notes to the financial statements continued

14 Property, plant and equipment

Assets in the
Landand  Fodures fitings course of
- Buldings  and equipment construction Total
£m £m £m £m

At 31 March 2012
Cost _  _ o 2,759 4 56129 3301 B,702 4
Accumulated depreciation and asset write-offs (270 6} (3,641 9 - (3,912 5)
Net book value 2,488 8 19710 3301 4,789 9
Year ended 30 March 2013
Opening net bock value 2,488 8 19710 3301 4,789 9
Additions 173 4303 1866 6342
Transfers L 161 1898 (2059 -
Disposals (0 4) (4 6) - (50)
Asset write-offs _ _ (0 6) {16 2) - (16 8)
Depreciation charge {117) (362 4) - (374 1)
Exchange difference 21 18 16 55
Closing net book value 25116 2,2097 3124 50337
At 30 March 2013 :
Cost 28171 61981 3124 93276
Accumulated depreciation and asset wnte-offs (305 5) (3,988 4) - (4,293 9)
Net book value 25116 22097 3124 50337
Year ended 29 March 2014
Opening net book value 25116 2,209.7 3124 5,033 7
Additions 346 362.7 155.8 5531
Transfers 417 169.1 {210 8) -
Disposals_ (15.2) (5.3) - (20.5)
Asset write-offs (14.3) (14.9) 6.0) 35.2)
Depreciation charge 150  (3647) - (37197
Exchange difference (3.7) (6.6} (1.2) (11.5)
Closing net book value 2,5387 2,350.0 250.2 5,139.9
At 29 March 2014 o .
Cost 28717 6,686.8 256.2 9,814.7
Accumulated depreciation and asset wiite-cffs (3320) (4.3368) (6.0) ~ (4,674.8)
Net book value 2,537 2,350.0 250.2 5,139.9

The net book value above includes land and buildings of £43 7m (last year £43 9m) and equipment of £4 2m (last year £11 1m) where

the Group I1s a lessee under a finance lease

Additions to property, plant and equipment during the year amounting to £nil (last year £nil} were financed by new finance leases
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15 Other financial assets

2014 2013
£m £m

Non-current B N
Unlisted investments 30 30
Other investments' 133 314
16 3 344

Current

Amounts owed by parent company 2,471 8 25168
Short-term investments? 124 107
Unlisted investments 53 62
2,489 5 2,5337

1 Other mvestmeants are the sharas in Marks and Spencer Group pic held for employee share schemes
2 Includes £t {last year £0 3m) and £1 5m (last year £0 3m} of money market deposits held by the Marks and Spencer Scotsh Limited Partnership and Marks and Spencer plc

respectvely

Non-current unhsted investments are camed as available-for-sale assets Other financial assets are measured at fair value with
changes in their value taken to the income statement

16 Trade and other receivables

2014 2013
£m £m

“Non-current _ A
Other receivables 828 304
Prepayments and accrued income ) 2307 2350
3135 2654
Current _
Trade receivables 1275 1137
Less Prowision for impairment of receivables _ (% (54)
Trade receivables — net 1268 1083
Other recevables 539 291
Prepayments and accrued income 128 8 1076
3095 2450

Trade recevables that were past due but not impaired amounted to £6 4m {(last year £1 8m) and are mainly sterling denominated The
directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates therr fair value

17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are £182 1m (last year £193 1m) The carrying amount of these assets approximates thew fair value

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits 15 0 41% (last year 0 03%) These deposits have an average matunty of eight
days (last year three days}

18 Trade and other payables

2014 2013
£m Em
Current

Trade and other payables 1,144 0 9727
Social secunty and other taxes | " sga 564
Accruals and deferred income " 490 4 4747
1,692 8 1,503 8

Non-current
Other payables ) "334.0 2921
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19 Borrowings and other financial habilities

2014 2013
£m £m
Current

Bank loans and overdrafts’ 4455 1518
5 625% £400m medwm term notes 2014* - 400 2
Finance lease habilities 3.2 67
448.7 5587

Non-current
Bank loans 0.2 03
6 250% US$500m medium-term notes 2017° 306.3 3357
6 125% £400m medium-term notes 2019° 4223 4369
6 125% £300m medium-term notes 20212 3021 3016
4 75% £400m medum term netes 2025° 392.3 4014
7 125% US$300m medium-term notes 2037° 182.9 2007
Finance lease liabilities 49.0 507
1,6551 1,727 3
Total 2,103 8 2,2860

Bank loans and overdrafts mcludes a £5 Om (last year £5 0m) toan from the Hedge End Park Limited joint venture {(see note 27)
Thesa notas are issued undar Marks and Spencer plc s £3bn European medium-term note programme and al pay interest annualty
Interest on these bands 1s payable semrannually

On 24 March 2014 the Group repa:d £400 2m of 5 625% medium-term notes

FS AN

Finance leases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as shown in the table on the following page It 1s the Group's policy to
lease certain of its properties and equipment under finance leases The average lease term for equipment is five years (last year five
years) and 125 years (last year 125 years) for property Interest rates are fixed at the contract rate All leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent payments The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured
by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets

20 Financial instruments

Treasury policy

The Group operates a centralised treasury function to manage the Group's funding requirements and financial nsks in line with the
Board approved treasury policies and procedures, and their delegated authonties

The Group's finangial instruments, other than denvatives, compnse borrowings, cash and liquid resources and vanous items, such as
trade receivables and trade payables that anse directly from its operations The main purpose of these financial instruments 1s to
finance the Group's operations

The Group treasury function also enters into derivative transactions, principally interest rate and currency swaps and forward currency
contracts The purpose of these transactions 15 to manage the interest rate and currency nsks ansing from the Group’s operations and
financing

It remains the Group’s policy not to hold or 1ssue financial instruments for trading purposes, except where financial constraints
necessitate the need to liquidate any outstanding investments The treasury function 1s managed as a cost centre and does not engage
in speculative trading
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20 Financial instrumenis continued

Financial nsk management

The pnneipal financial nsks faced by the Group are liquidity/funding, interest rate, foreign currency and counterparly nisks The policies
and strategies for managing these nsks are summansed on the following pages

{a) Liquidity/funding nsk
The risk that the Group could be unable to settle or meet s obligations at a reasenable price as they fall due

The Group’s funding strategy ensures a mix of funding sources offering flexibility and cost effectveness to match the requirements of
the Group

Operating subsidianes are financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings, medium-term notes and committed
syndicated bank facilities

At year end, the Group had a committed syndicated bank revolving credit facility of £1 325bn set to mature on 28 September 2018 and
a facility of £150m set to mature on 16 May 2014 (with an option to extend to a faciity of £100m matunng on 16 May 2015) These
faciities contain only one financial covenant being the ratio of earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rents
payable, to interest plus rents payable The covenant 1s measured semi-annually The Group also has a number of undrawn
uncommitted facilities available to it At year end, these amounted to £80m (last year £105m}, all of which are due to be reviewed
within a year At the balance sheet date a sterling equivalent of £233 Sm (last year £81m) was drawn under the committed facilities and
£22 5m (last year £ni1l) was drawn under the uncommitted facilities

In additien to the existing borrowings, the Group has a euro medium-term note programme of £3bn, of which £1 5bn (last year £1 5bn)
was In 1ssuance as at the balance sheet date

The 5625% £400m medium-term loan note was repaid in March 2014

The contractual matunity of the Group's non-denvative financial labilities {excluding trade and other payables {see note 18) and
denvatives) 1s as follows

Partnership

[ability to Total
theMarks &  Dorrowings
Bank loans Finance Spencer UK and other
and  Syndicated Medum term lease pension financial Dervative Darrvative
overdratis  bank facility notas liabikties schema habilities assels habibes Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Timing of cash flows
Within one year (70 8) (810 {509 6) (93) (71 9) (7426) 1,7874 (1,751 9) 355
Between one and two years (0 3) - (96 6) 43 (71 9) (173 1) 2017 {192 O) g7
Between two and five years ) - - {619 5) (73 (2155) (842 3) 449 3 {431 1) 18 2
More than five years - — (1,8543) (1886) (3592) (2,402 1) 4856 {468 1) 1756
(71 1) (810) (3,0800) (2095 (7185) _ (41601} 29240 (2,843 1) 809
Effect of discounting and foreign - - 1,003 5 152 1 a59 1,251 5
At 30 March 2013 {71 1) (810) (20765 (574) (6226) (2,908 6)
Timing of cash flows o
Within one year (211 6) (2339) {93 5) (55) (719 (616 4) 11,8499 (1,8796) (297)
Between one and two years 02 - (936} (29 (T19)_ (168 5) 207 4 {203 8) 36
Between two and five years - - (562 6} 89} (21586) (785 1) 3834 (414 4) (310)
More than five years - - {(1,7374) {18586) (287 3) (2,2103) 4255 {4789) (534)
(211 8) (2339) (2,4870) (2009) (6467) (3,7803) 2,8662 (2,9767) {(1105)
Effect of discounting and foreign N - T 8811 1313 7 'f& 0 1,107 8
At 29 March 2014 {211 8) (2339) {(1,6059) (522) (5687) (2,6725)
The present value of finance lease habllifies 15 as follows
2014 2013
£fm £m
Within one year (32) 67
Later than one year and not later than five years (12) 9 1)
Later than five years (47 8) (41 6)
Total {52 2) (57 4)
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20 Financial instruments continued

(b} Counterparty risk

Counterparty nisk exists where the Group can suffer financia! loss through default or non-performance by financial institutions

Exposures are managed through Group treasury policy which lmits the value that can be placed with each approved counterpary to
minimuse the nsk of loss The counterparties are imited to the approved institutions with secure long-term credit ratings A-/A3 or better,
assigned by Moody's and Standard & Poor's respectively, unless approved by exception by the CFQ Limits are reviewed regularly by
senior management The credit nisk of these financial instruments 1s estimated as the fair value of the assets resulting from the
contracts

The table below analyses the Group’s short-term invesiments and denvative assets by credit exposure excluding bank balances, store
cash and cash in transit

Credt rating of counterparty’

AAAM AAA AA AA- A+ A A BEB+

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m fm Total
Short-term investments’ 03 - - 95 1186 132 - - 3486
Derivative assets? - - - 168 64 42 4 16 1 — 818
At 30 March 2013 03 - - 264 180 556 161 - 116 4

AAAM AAA AA AA- A+ A A- BBB+,

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m Total
Short-term investments' - - - 120 120 78 - - 618
Denvative assets? - - - 76 05 17 55 66 319
At 29 March 2014 - - - 196 125 495 55 66 937

includes cash on deposit and money market funds held by Marks and Spencer Scothish Limited Partnership Marks and Spencer plc and M 5 General Insurance LP
Excludes the embedded denvative within the lease host contract

Standard & Poor's equivalent rating shown as reference to the lowest credit rating of the counterparty from either Standard & Poor's or Moody s

Expasure to a counterparty approved as an exceplion to treasury policy

WK =

The Group has very low retail credit nsk due to transactions being principaliy of a high volume, low value and short matunty

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date was as follows trade receivables £128m (last year £114m), other
receivables £136m {last year £60m), cash and cash equivalents £182m (last year £193m) and derivatives £54m (last year £108m)

{c) Foreagn currency risk

Transactionai foreign currency exposures arise from both the export of goods from the UK to overseas subsidianes, and from the
import of matenals and goods directly sourced from overseas supphers

Group treasury hedges these exposures pnncipally using forward foreign exchange contracts progressively covenng up to 100% out to
18 months Where appropnate, hedge cover can be taken out for longer than 18 months, with Board approval The Group 1s pnimarily
exposed to foreign exchange nsk in relation to sterling against movements in US dollar and euro

Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to the Group’s forecast currency requirements are designated as cash flow hedges with
far value movements recognised directly in comprehensive income To the extent that these hedges cover actual currency payables or
receivables, then associated far value movements previously recognised in comprehensive income are recorded in the income
statement in conjunction with the corresponding asset or hability As at the balance sheet date the gress notional value i sterling terms
of forward foreign exchange sell or buy contracts amounted to £1,600m (last year £1,342m) with a weighted average matunty date of
six months (last year seven months)

Gains and losses 1n equity on forward foreign exchange contracts as at 29 March 2014 will be released to the income statement at
various dates over the following 16 months (last year 15 months) from the balance sheet date

The Group uses a combination of foreign currency debt and dernvatives to hedge balance sheet translation exposures As at the
balance sheet date €162m of currency debt (last year €200m of denvatives) and HK$698m (last year HK$484m) of derivatives was
hedging overseas net assets

The Group also hedges foreign currency intercompany loans where these exist Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to the
hedging of the Group’s foreign currency intercompany loans are designated as held for trading with fair value movements being
recognised in the income statement The corresponding fair value movement of the intercompany loan balance results in an overall £l
impact on the income statement As at the balance sheet date, the gross notional value of intercompany loan hedges was £417m (last
year £307m)
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After taking into account the hedging dernvatives entered into by the Group, the currency and interest rate exposure of the Group's
financial habilites excluding short-term payables and the hability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (which has no currency
or interest rate exposure} and the Marks and Spencer Czech Republic a s put option, 13 set out below

2014 2013
Fixed rate Floating rate Total Fixed rate Floatng rate Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em

Currency
Sterling 1,226 5 708 6 1,935 1 1,929 9 3181 2,248 0
Euro 66 1393 1459 38 67 106
Other - 228 228 - 27 4 274
1,233 1 8707 2,103 8 1,933 8 352 2 2,286 0

The flpating rate sterling and euro borrowings are linked to interest rates related to LIBOR These rates are for periods between one
and six months

As at the balance sheet date and excluding finance leases, the fixed rate sterling borrowings are at an average rate of 5 3% (last year
5 6%) and the weighted average time for winch the rate 1s fixed 15 nine years (last year eight years)

(d) Interest rate nsk
The Group i1s exposed to interest rate nsk in relation to sterling, US dollar, and euro dollar vanable rate financial assets and habilities

The Group’s policy 1s to use denvative contracts where necessary to maintain a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings to manage
this nsk The structure and maturity of these denvatives comrespond to the underlying borrowings and are accounted for as fair value or
cash flow hedges as appropnate

At the balance sheet date, fixed rate borrowings amounted to £1,233 1m (last year £1,933 8m) representing the public bond 1ssues and
finance leases, amounting to 59% (last year 85%) of the Group’s gross borrowings

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows

2014 2013
% %
Commutted and uncommitted borrowings i 10 12
Medium-term notes 53 56
Finance leases T 43 43
Denvative financial instruments

2014 2013
Assets Liahilities Assets Labilities
fm fm £m £m

Current ~ o :
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 121 (509) 340 (12 8)
— held for trading 16 ~{06) 36 09)
— net investment hedges - - 49 -
137 (51 5) 425 (137)

Non-current i B
Cross currency swaps - cash flow hedges - (623) 32 (12 4)
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 03 _{09) KY:] on
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedge i 119 (12 2) 324 -
Embedded derwvative (see note 5) 224 - 259 -
406 (75 4) 653 (13 1)

The Group holds a number of interest rate swaps to redesignate its sterling fixed debt to floating debt These are reported as fair value
hedges The ineffective pertion recognised in the profit or loss that anses from fair value hedges amounts to £0 5m (last year £nil) as
the gain on the hedged tem was £33 7m (last year £8 Om loss} and the loss on the hedging instrument was £34 2m (last year £8 Om
gain) The Group also holds a number of cross currency swaps to redesignate its fixed rate US dollar debt to fixed rate sterling debt
These are reported as cash flow hedges

Sensttivity analysts

The table below illustrates the estimated impact on the income statement and equity as a result of market movements in foreign
exchange and interest rates in relation to the Group's financial instruments The Directors consider that a 2% +/- (last year 2%)
movement In Interest rates and a 20% +/- (last year 20%) weakening In sterling represents a reasonable possible change However
this analysis 1s for lllustrative purposes only
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20 Financial instruments continued

The impact in the income statement due to changes in interest rates reflects the effect on the Group's floating rate debt as at the
balance sheet date The impact in equty reflects the fair value movement in retation to the Group's cross currency swaps

The impact from foreign exchange movements reflects the change in the farr value of the Group's transactional foreign exchange cash
flow hedges and the net investment hedges at the balance sheet date The equity impact shown for foreign exchange sensitivity relates
to denvative and non-denvative financial instruments hedging net investments This value ts expected to be fully offset by the re-
translation of the hedged fereign currency net assets leaving a net equity smpact of zero

The table excludes financial instruments that expose the Group to interest rate and foreign exchange risk where such nsk s fully
hedged with another financial instrument Also excluded are trade recewvables and payables as these are either sterling denominated

or the foreign exchange sk 1s hedged

2% decrease 2% increase 20% 20%
1 interest nonterest weakening strengthening
rates ratas n staring n stering
£m £m £m £m
At 30 March 2013

Impact en income statement gain/(loss) 37 {5 6} - -
impact on other comprehensive income (loss)/gain {6 9) 35 1008 (87 2)

At 29 March 2014 )
Impact on income statement gain/(loss) 42 (16 1) - -
Impact on other comprehensive income (loss)/gain {17 9} 116 1249 {141 3)

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

The following tables set out the financial assets and financial habitities which are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements Amounts which are set off against financial assets and habilihes in the Group's statement of
financial position are set out below For trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, amounts not offset in the statement
of financial position but which could be offset under certain circumstances are also set out

Gross financial assets/  Gross finangal  Net financial assets/  Related amounts not Not
(habilities) {habilrties) {habiiies) per sat off in the £m
assels set off Statement of tnancial statemant of financial
£m em position poOSILoR
£€m Em
At 29 March 2014
Trade and other receivables 335 (24 2) 93 (9 3) -
Dervative financial assets 318 - 319 {319) -
Cash and cash equivalents 452 (39 0) 62 62
1106 (63 2) 47 4 {41 2) 62
Trade and other payables (233.2) 24.2 (209 0) 9.3 (1997)
Denvative financial habilities (126.9) - (126 9} 319 (95.0)
Bank loans and overdrafts (451) 39.0 (6.1) - (6.1)
{405.2) 63.2 (342,0} 412 (300.8)
Gross financial assets/ Gross financal  Net financial assets/ Related amounts Net
(habsktes) (habiibres)y/ {iabiit:es) per  not set offl in the £m
m assels sat off Statement of financial statemant of
£m posiion  financial position
£m £m
At 30 March 2013
Trade and other receivables 126 (50) 76 (7 6) -
Dervative financial assets 818 - 818 {26 8) 550
Cash and cash equivalents 545 (179 366 - 366
148 9 (22 9) 126 0 (34 4) 816
Trade and other payables (152 3) 50 (147 3) 76  (1397)
Denvative financial habilities (26 8) - (26 8} 268 -
Bank loans and overdrafts (49 9} 179 (32 0) - 32 0)
(223 0} 229 (206 1) 344 (171 7)
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20 Financial instruments continued

The gross financial assets and liabilities set off in the balance sheet pnimanly relate to cash pooling arrangements with banks Amounts
which do not meet the cntena for offsetting on the Statement of Financial Position but could be settled net in certain circumstances
principally relate to denvative transactions under International Swaps and Denvatives Assocration (ISDA) agreements where each
party has the option to settle amounts on a net basis in the event of default of the other party

Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial nstruments by valuation technique
Level 1 quoted (unadjusted} pnces in active markets for identical assets or habilities,

Level 2 not traded i an active market but the far values are based on quoted market prices or alternative pricing scurces with
reasonable levels of price fransparency The Group's level 2 financial instruments include OTC denvatives, and

Level 3 techmgues which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market
data Unlisted equity investments are included in Level 3 The farr value of embedded denvatives 1s determined using the present value
of the estimated future cash flows based on financial forecasts The nature of the valuation techniques and the judgement around the
Inputs mean that a change 1n assumptions could result in significant change i the fair value of the instrument

As at the end of the reporting penod, the Group held the following financial instruments measured at fair value

2014 2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Em £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss
- Trading denvatives - l6 - 16 - 36 - 36
Dervatives used for hedging - 303 - 303 - 783 - 783
Embedded dervatives (note 5) - - 224 224 - - 259 259
Available-for-sale financia! assets
- Equity securities - - 30 30 - - 3o 30
Short term investments - 124 - 124 - 107 - 107
Liabiities measured at farr value )
Financial labilities at fair value through
profit and loss
— Trading denvatives - (0.6) - (0 6) = (09 - 09
Denvative used for hedging - {126 3) - (126 3) - (25 9) - {25 9)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
measurements in the current reporiing penod

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments

2014 2013

£m Em

Opening balance _ 289 231
Gamns recognised in the ncome statement (3 5) 58
Closing balance 254 289

The gains recognised in the income statement relate to the valuation of the embedded denvative in a lease contract The fair value
movement of the embedded denvative of £3 5m (last year £5 8m) 1s treated as adjustment to reported profit (see note 5)

Fair value of financial instruments

With the exception of the Group's fixed rate bond debt and the Partnership liabihty to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension scheme, there
were no matenal differences between the carrying value of non-denvative financial assets and financial habihties and their fair values
as at the balance sheet date

The carrying value of the Group's fixed rate bond debt was £1,605 9m (last year £2,076 5m), the fair value of this debt was £1,780 3m
(last year £2,196 6m) which has been calculated using quoted market prices The carrying value of the Partnership liability to the Marks
& Spencer UK Pension scheme 15 £568 7m (lasl year £622 6m) and the fair value of this hability 1s £555 8m (last year £606 Om)
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Capital policy

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide optimal
returns for shareholders and to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In doing so the Group's strategy 1s to maintain a capital structure cornmensurate with an investment grade credit rating and to retain
appropnate levels of iquicity headroom to ensure financial statnlity and flexibility Teo achieve this strategy the Group regularly monitors
key credit metrics such as the gearing ratio, cash flow to net debt {see note 26) and fixed charge cover to maintain this position In
addition, the Group ensures a combination of appropnate commutted short-term hquidity headreom with a diverse and balanced long-
term debt matunty profile As at the balance sheet date the Group's average debt matunty profile was nine years (last year eight

years) During the year the Group maintained an investment grade credit rating of Baa3 (stable) with Moody's and BBB- (stable) with

Standard & Poor's

In order to maintain or reahgn the capital structure, the Group may adjust the number of dividends paid to sharehclders, return capital
to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

21 Provisions

2014 2013
£m £m
At start of year . 352 324
Provided in the year 718 139
Released in the year {4 3) (13)
Utihsed during the year (25 6) {9 8)
Exchange differences {0 9) -
At end of year 76 2 352
Analysis of provisions
Current 44 8 192
Non-current 314 160
Total provisions 76 2 352

The provisions primarily comprise of one-off costs related to the strategic restructure in the UK in 2008/09 (including onerous leases),
costs in relation to the current restructure of the logistics distribution network, costs relating to the restructure in Ireland (including the
closure of four stores, redundancy and other employee related costs) and onerous leases within China and Czech Group

The current element of the provision primanly relates to onerous teases and redundancies The non-current element of the prowvision
relates to store closures, pnimarily onerous leases, and 1s expected to be utiised over a period of 10 years

22 Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided under the balance sheet labiity method using a tax rate of 20% (last year 23%) for UK differences and local
tax rates for overseas differences Details of the changes to the UK corporation tax rate and the impact on the Group are descnbed in

note 7

\
The movements in deferred tax assets and habilittes (after offseting balances within the same junsdiction as permitted by 1AS 12 —

‘income Taxes') dunng the year are shown below

Deferred tax {liab:ities)/assets

Land and Captal Pansion Other Total

buidings aftowances in temporary short-term UK Overseas Total

temporary excessof  differances temporary  deferred fax deferred otz.

differences  depreciation (restated*  differences {restated’ tax {restated

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 April 2012 (582); (10086) (38 9) 65 (191 2) (14 9) (206 1)

Credited/(charged) to the income statement 57 100 (2 6) 07 138 13 151
{Charged)/credited to equity/other comprehensive

income - - {55 1) {07) (55 8) 62 {49 6)

At 30 March 2013 {52 5) {90 6) (96 6) 65 (233 2) (7 4) {240 6)

At 31 March 2013 (52 5) {90 6) (96 6) 65 (2332) {(74) (240.6)

Credited/{charged) to the income statement 32 (¢3) (0 8) {125) (19 4) (19} {21 3)
(Charged)/credited to equity/other comprehensive

income - - 01 209 210 {17} 193

At 29 March 2014 {49 3) (99 9) (97 3) 149 (231 6) {11 0) (242 6)

1 Restaternent ralates to tha adophon of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits (see note 1)

Other shon-term temporary differences relate mainly to employee share options and financial instruments
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22 Deferred tax continued

The deferred tax hability on land and buildings temporary differences 1s reduced by the benefit of capital losses with a tax value of
£46 5m (last year £62 0m} Due to uncertainty over therr future use, no benefit has been recognised in respect of unexpired trading

losses carned forward in overseas junisdichions with a tax value of £38 7m (last year £30 8m)

No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of undistnbuted earnings of overseas subsidianes and joint ventures, as no

matenal liability 1s expected to anse on distribution of these earnings under applicable tax {eqislation

23 Ordinary share capital

2014 2013

Shares £m Shares £m

Issued and fully pard osdinary shares of 25p each 2,850,039,477 7125 2.850,039,477 712 5
24 Contingencies and commitments

A Capital commitments

2014 2013

£m £m

Commitments in respect of properttes in the course of construction 861 95

In respect of its interest in a Jjoint venture, the Group 1s committed to incur capital expenditure of £nil {last year £nil)

B Other matenal contracts

In the event of a matenal change n the trading arrangements with certain warehouse operatars, the Group has a commitment to
purchase property, plant and equipment, at values ranging from historical net book value to market value, which are currently owned

and cperated by the warehouse operators on the Group’s behalf
See note 11 for details on the partnership arrangement with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme
C Commitments under operating leases

The Group leases various stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases

have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal nghts

2014

2013

£m £m
Total future mimimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows
Within one year _ 2969 2769
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,0341 1,064 5
Later than five years and not later than ten years 1,0201 1,053 7
Later than ten years and not later than 15 years 6720 6951
Later than 15 years and not later than 20 years _ 3583 3668
Later than 20 years and not later than 25 years ) 2363 2470
Later than 25 years 10641 1,143 0
Total 4,681 8 4,847 0

The total future sublease payments to be receiwved are £44 9m (last year £50 6m)
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25 Analysis of cash flows given in the statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities

2014 (reslz::c:):;l

£m £m

Profit on ordinary actvities after taxation 489 3 4615
Income tax expense o 4 911 857
Finance costs 1391 2182
Finance income {25 0) (12 4)
Operating profit 6945 7530
Increase in inventornes (86 4) (91 2)
{Increase)/decrease in recevables (45 8) 95
Increase in payables 107 7 770
Non-underlying operating cash outflows (68 2) (21 4)
Depreciation, amortisation and asset wnte-offs 5047 467 4
Share-based payments 213 258
Pension costs charged against operating profit 92 4 714
Cash contributions to pension schemes (92 1) (709)
Non-underlying operating profit tems 47 4 256
Cash generated from operations 1,1755 1,246 2

1 Restatement refates to the adopton of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits (soe note 1}

Non-underlying operating cash outflows relate to the utihisation of the provisions for restructunng of the logistics network and n lreland,
strategic programme costs and the reduction in M&S Bank income for the impact of the financial preduct mis-selling provision

26 Analysss of net debt

A Reconciliation of movement in net debt

At Exchange and At
31 March other non-cash 29 March
2013 Cash flow movements 2014
£m £m £m £m

Net cash i
Bank loans, overdrafts and syndicated bank facility {note 19) {152 1) (295 7) 21 (445 7)
Less amounts treated as financing {(see below) 1197 3217 {2 1) 4393
{324) 260 - (6.4)
Cash and cash equivalents (note 17) 1931 {9 4) (16) 1821
Net cash per statement of cash flows 160 7 16 6 {1.6) 1757
Current financial assets (see note 15) 2,5337 (44 2) - 2,489 5

Debt financing

Bank loans and overdrafts treated as financing (see above) R (119 7) (321 7) 21 (439 3)
Medium-term notes {2,008 8) 4000 (10) (1609 8)
Finance lease habihties (note 19) (57 4) 73 21 (52 2)
Partnership habiliy to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (note 11) (606 0) 503 - (555.7)
Debt finanang {2,791 9) 1359 (10} (2,657.0)
Net debt (97 5) 1083 (2 6) 8.2

43




Marks and Spencer plc

Notes to the financial statements continued

26 Analysis of net debt continued

B Reconciiation of net debt to statement of financial position

2014 2013
£m £m_
Statement of financial position and related notes
Cash and cash equivalents (note 17) 182.1 1931
Current financial assets (note 15) 2,489 5 2,5337
Bank loans and overdrafts (note 19) (445 7) (152 1)
Medium-term notes — net of hedging dernvatives (1,649 0) (2,040 2)
Finance lease habilities (note 19) (52 2) (57 4)
Partnership hability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (note 11) (568 7) (622 6)
44 0) (145 5)
Interest payable included within related borrowing and the partnership hability to the
Marks & Spencer UK pension scheme 522 480
Total net debt 82 (97 5)

27 Related party transactions

A Parent company and Subsidianes

During the year, the Company paid dividends to its parent company, Marks and Spencer Group plc, of £273 6m (last year £273 6m)
and decreased its loan to its parent company by £45 Om {last year £24 9m)

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are disclosed in the Company’s separate financial
statements

On 28 March 2014 the Group acquired the remaining 49% shareholding of Marks and Spencer Czech Republic a s for £6 Om taking its
share in the Czech Group (Czech Republic, Estoria, Latvia, Lithuania, Slovakia and Poland) to 100% This transaction has been
accounted for through equity as the Group already controlled these entities and consolidated them as subsidianes

B Hedge End joint venture

A loan of £5 0m was receved from the joint venture on 9 October 2002 It s repayable on five business days’ notice and was renewed
on 1 January 2012 Interest was charged on the loan at 2 0% until 31 December 2009 and 0 5% thereafter

C Lima (Bradford) joint venture

A loan facility was provided to the joint venture on 11 August 2008 At 29 March 2014, £24 Om (last year £21 7m) was drawn down on
this facility Interest was charged on the loan at 1 1% above 3-month LIBOR The Group has entered into a rental agreement with the
joint venture and £4 6m (last year £4 6m) of rental charges were incurred There was no cutstanding balance at March 2014

D Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme
Details of other transactions and balances held with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme are set out in notes 10 and 11
E Key management compensation

2014 2013

£m £m
Salanes and short-term benefits 3B 556
Share-based payments 21 11
Total 59 66

Key management comprises Board directors only Further information about the remuneration of individual directors of the Company
who are also a director for Marks and Spencer Group plc 1s provided in the Remuneration Report on pages 52 to 77 of the Marks and
Spencer Group plc Annual Report, which does not form part of this report Dunng the year, key management have purchased goods at
the Group's usual prices less a 20% discount This discount 1s available to all staff employed directly by the Group in the UK

F Other related party transactions

Suppler transactions occurred during the year between the Group and a company controlled by Martha Lane Fox's partner Martha 1s
a non-executive director of Marks and Spencer Group plc These transactions amounted to £9 8m dunng the year (last year £2 4m)
with an outstanding trade payable of £0 4m at 29 March 2014 {last year £0 2m)

Supplier transactions occurred durnng the year between the Group and a company controlled by a close family member of Kate
Bostock, a former executive director of the Group These transactions amounted to £6 5m from 1 Apnl 2012 to 1 Qctober 2012, the
date of Kate Bostock's resignation The company was a supplier prior to Kate's employment by the Group
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52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
29 March 2014 30 March 2013
(restated)*
Notes £m £m
Profit for the year ‘ 1496 549 8
Other comprehensive (expense)income o o - T
Items that will not be classified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of retirement benefit schemes (87 2) 1130
Tax credit/(charge) on retirement benefit schemes i 390 {21 8)
{58 2) 912
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Farr value movement on available-for-sale assets {19 6) 85)
Cash flow and net investment hedges
— fair value movements in other comprehensive income (140 3) 5563
— reclassified and reported in net profit 431 (41 4)
— amount recognised in inventories 149 (14}
Tax credit/(charge) on cash flow hedges and net invesiment hedges 16 1 (32)
(85 8) 08
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year, net of tax (144 0) 920
Total comprehensive income for the year 56 641 8

1 Restatement refates to the adoption of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits (see note C1)

The profit attnbutable to shareholders of the Company for the year 1s £149 6m (last year £549 8m)
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As gt As at
29 March 2014 30 March 2013
{restated)’
Notes £m £m

Assets 3 }

Non-current assets

Intangible assets cs 646 2 530 4
Property, plant and equipment c7 33357 3,185 9
Investments in group undertakings cs 1,083 5 11926
Investment in joint ventures 64 104
Other financial assets co 16 3 344
Retirement benefit asset c3 595 1 6496

Trade and other recevables c10 108 8 1107
Dervative financial instruments o _ Ci4 406 653

o - L L 58326 5,789 3

"Current assets -

Inventones 7736 692 6
Other financial assets co 18 03
Trade and other recevables c10 3,2097 3,194 4
Dernvative financial instruments Ci4 217 553
Cash and cash equivalents 126 6 157 1

. L 4,133 4 4,099 7
Total assets ~ o L 99660 98830
Liabiities
Current iabiities

Trade and other payables c12 3,016 3 27290
Borrowings and other financial liabilities c13 4207 5250
Dernvative financial instruments Cc14 721 195
Prowisions c15 255 157
Current tax habiities 179 126

. o 3552 5 3,301 8
Non-current habilities
Retirement benefit deficit c3 110 124
Trade and other payables c12 486 4 4224
Borrowings and other financial labilities c13 1,648 3 1,720 2
Denvative financial mstruments c14 75 4 131
Provisions c15 181 105
Deferred tax rabilities cie 226 4 2229

2,465 6 24015

Total habiliies o o ~ 6,018 1 57033
Net assets - 39479 41857
Equity
Issued share capital c17 712 5 7125
Share premium account 386 4 3861
Capital redemphion reserve 80 ) 80
Hedging reserve (44 8) 214
Retained earnings 2,886 1 3,057 7
Total equity 3,947 9 41857

1 Restatement refates to the adopton of the revised LAS 19 Employee Benefits (see note C1)

of the notes on pageéy'49 to 67

The financial statein;}?ts were approved by the Board and authonsed for 1ssue on 23 September 2014 The financial statements also compnse

Jojtn Dixan;Director

Registered number
00214436
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Ordslrr\:rr: m:mh:: redecm?:%ﬂ Hedging :m
capital  account reserve  reserve Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em

At 1 Apnl 2012 (restated)’ 7125 3861 80 121 2,6681 3,786 8
Profit for the year (restated)’ - - - - 5498 549 8
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of retirement benefit schemes _ _ _ _ 1130 1130
(restated)’'
Tax charge on retirement benefit schemes (restated)’ - - - - (21 8) {21 8)
Farr value movement in equity on available-for-sale assets - - - - {8 5) (8 5)
Cash flow and net investment hedges
- fair value movements in cther comprehensive income - - - 553 - 553
—  reclassified and reported in net profit - - - (414 - {41 4)
~  amount recogmsed in Inventones - - - (14) - {14)
Tax on cash flow hedges and net investment hedges - - - (32) - 32
Other comprehensive income (restated)’ - - - 93 827 920
Total comprehensive income (restated)’ - - - 93 6325 6418
Transactions with owners
Dividends - - - - (273 86) (273 6)
Credtt for share-based payments - - - - 279 27 9
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - 28 28
At 30 March 2013 (restated)’ 7125 3861 80 214 30577 41857
At 31 March 2013 (restated)’ 7125 3861 80 214 30577 4,1857
Profit for the year - - - - 149 6 149 6
Other comprehensive iIncome
Remeasurements of retirement benefit schemes - - - - (97 2) (97 2)
Tax charge on retirement benefit schemes - - - - 390 390
Fair value movement in equity on available-for-sale assets - - - - {19 6) (19 6)
Cash flow and net investment hedges )
- far value movements in other comprehensive income - - - {140 3) - {140 3)
- reclassified and reported in net profit - - - 431 - 431
— amount recognised in mventones - - - 149 - 14 9
Tax on cash flow hedges and nel investment hedges = - - 16 1 - 161
Other comprehensive mcome - - - (662) {77 8) (144 0)
Total comprehensive income - - - (662) 718 56
Transactions with owners
Dividends - - - - (273 86) (273 6)
Credit for share-hased payments - - - - 212 212
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - = 80 S0
At 29 March 2014 7125 3861 80 (448} 2,8861 3,947 9

1 Restatament retates to the adoption of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits (see note C1)

47




Marks and Spencer plc

Company statement of cash flows

52 weaks ended

52 weeks ended

Notes 25 March 2051': 30 March 2%:
Cash flows from eperating activities _

Cash generated from operations c19 896 6 1,288 9
income tax pad (37 0) (90 8)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 8596 1,198 1
Cash flows from investing activittes

Proceeds from sale of p_roperty. plant and equipment - 775
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (379 1) (590 2)
Purchase of intangible assets (198 7) (183 6)
Proceeds from sale of shares in group companies 255 -
(Purchase)/sale of current financial assets (1 5) 48 9
Interest (paid)/receved (0 2) 20
Net cash used in investing activities (554 0) (645 4)
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid {107 6) {133 0)
Cash inflow from borrowings 171 2 -
Drawdown of syndicated bank facility 154 1 810
Movement in intercompany loans treated as financing 152 9 (0 1)
Issue of medium-term notes - 3956
Redemption of medium-term notes (400 0) (606 4)
Decrease In obligations under finance leases _ 71) (107)
Equity drvidends paid (273 6) (273 8)
Net cash used in financing activities (310 1) (547 2)
Net cash inflow from activities (4 5) 58
Qpening net cash 1250 1195
Closing net cash C11 1205 1250
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C1 Accounting policies

The Company's accounting policies are the same as those set out in note 1 of the Group financiat statements, except as noted below
Investments in subsidianes are stated at cost less, where appropnate, provisions for impairment

Loans from other Group undertakings and all other payables are initially recorded at fair value, which 1s generally the proceeds
received They are then subsequently carned at amortised cost The loans are non-interest bearing and repayable on demand

The Company's financial nsk 1s managed as part of the Group’s strategy and policies as discussed n note 20 of the Group finangial
statements

In accordance with the exemption allowed by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own
income statement

IAS 18 (revised) ‘Employee Benefits' has been adopted in the financial year The revised standard replaces the expected return on
plan assets and the interest cost on habilities with a net interest expense calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit asset or hability In addition, admimistration costs on pension funds are now recognised Iin the profit or loss when the
administration services are performed Previously the Company included an expense reserve in the defined benefit cbligation The
revised standard has retrospective applicaton The adoption of the revised standard has resulted in the following changes

Statement of Financial Pesition {total net asset increase of £33 1m)

= Net retirement benefit asset increased by £43 Om, and
— Deferred tax liability increased by £9 9m

Retained Earmings (total increase of £33 1m)

~— Opening retained earmngs increased by £34 6m,

- Profit after tax decreased by £13 2m,

— Remeasurements of retirement benefit assets recognised in
other comprehensive income (OCI) increased by £15 1m, and

— Tax on retirement benefit scheme recognised in OCI increased
by £3 4m

C2 Dividends

2014 2013 2014 2013
per share , perchare £m £m

Dividends cn equity ordinary shares
Paid final dvidend §1p 61p 1739 1739
Paid interm dividend 35p 35 997 99 7
9 6p 2 6p 2736 273 6

In addition, the directors have proposed a final dividend in respect of the year ended 29 March 2014 of 6 2p per share amounting to a
dividend of £176 7m

C3 Retirement benefits

The Company provides pension arrangements for the benefit of its UK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme
(a defined benefit arrangement which was closed to new entrants with effect from 1 Apnil 2002) and Your M&S Pension Saving Plan (a
defined contnbution arrangement which has been open 10 new mambers with effect from 1 Apnl 2003)

The defined contribution plan 1s a pension plan under which the Group pays contnbutions to an independently admimistered fund —
such contnbutions are based upon a fixed percentage of employees’ pay The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions to the fund once the contributions have been pard  Members' benefits are determined by the amount of
contnbutions paid by the Group and the member, together with investment returns earned on the contnibutions ansing from the
performance of each individual’'s chosen investments and the type of pension the member chooses to buy at retirement  As a result,
actuanal nsk (that benefits will be lower than expected) and investment nsk (that assets invested in will not perform in ine with
expeclations) fall on the employee

The defined benefit arrangement operates on a final salary basis and at the year end had some 13,000 active members (last year
13,000), 55,000 deferred members (tast year 55,000) and 51,000 pensioners (last year 51,000} At the year end, the defined
contrnibution arrangement had some 38,000 active members (last year 33,000) and some 5,000 deferred members (last year 3,000)
The scheme 1s governed by a Trustee board which 1s independent of the Group

Within the total retirement benefit cost of £6% 1m (last year restated £64 Om}, £27 Om (last year restated £40 Om) relates to the UK
defined benefit section, £41 7m (last year restated £20 3m) to the UK defined contribution section and £0 4m (last year restated £3 7m)
to other retirement benefit schemes
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The most recent actuanal valuation of the UK Defined Benefit Pension Scheme was carmed out at 31 March 2012 and showed a deficit
of £290m As a resuit a funding plan of £112m cash contnbutions was agreed with the Trustees The Group will contribute ¢ £28m to
the UK defined benefit scheme on 31 March 2014 and expects to contribute an additional ¢ £28m each year until 31 March 2017 The
difference between the valuation and the funding plan 1s expected to be met by investment better than expected investment returns on
the scheme's assets Future contributions to meet the cost of accruing benefits to the UK scheme are made at the rate of 23 4% of
pensionable satanes up to the next full actuanal valuation

By funding its defined benefit pension schemes, the Group 1s exposed to the nsk that the cost of meeting its obligations 1s higher than
anticipated This could occur for several reasons, for example

. Investment returns on the schemes’ assets may be lower than anticipated, especially if falls in asset values are not matched by
similar falls in the value of the schemes' habilities

. The level of price inflation may be higher from that assumed, resulting in higher payments from the schemes

. Scheme members may live tonger than assumed, for example due to unanticipated advances in medical healthcare Members
may also exercise {(or not exercise} options in a way that leads to increases in the schemes' hiabilities, for example through early
retirement or commutation of pension for cash

. Legislative changes could also lead to an increase in the schemes' labilifies

tn addition, the Group has an ocbhgation to the UK defined benefit scheme via the interest in the Scottish Limited Partnership (refer to
note 12), through which the Group 1s exposed tc additional nsks In particular, under the legal terms of the Partnership, a default by
the Group on the rental payments to the Partnership or a future change n legislation could trigger earher or ligher payments, cr an
increase n the collateral to be provided by the Group

A Penstons and other post-retirement habilthes

2013

2014 (raslaled)‘

£m £m

Total market value of assets 7,0391 7,240 6

Present value of scheme habilities (6,444 0) (6,591 0)

Net funded pension plan asset 5951 6496

Unfunded retrement benefits - 01)

Post-retirement heaithcare {11 0) (123)

Net retirement benefit asset 584 1 637 2
Analysed in the statement of financial position as

Retrement benefit asset 5951 6496

Retirement benefit deficit (11 0) (12 4)

5841 6372

1 Restatement relates io the adoption of the revised IAS 19 ‘Employea Benefits (see note C1)

B Funancial assumptions

The financial assumphions for the UK scheme and the most recent actuanal valuations of the other post-retirement schemes have been
updated by independent qualified actuanes to take account of the requirements of IAS 19 — ‘Employee Benefits’ in order to assess the
habilities of the schemes and are as follows

2014 2013

% %

Rate of increase in salanes 10 10
Rate of increase in pensions in payment for service 22-33 24-32
Discount rate 445 4 30
Inflation rate 34 34
Long-term healthcare cost increases 74 71

The inflation rate of 3 4% reflects the Retail Price Index (RPI) rate Certain benefits have been calculated with reference to the
Consumer Price Index (CPI) as the inflationary measure and in these instances a rate of 2 4% (last year 2 4%} has been used

The amount of the surplus varies if the main financial assumptions change, particularly the discount rate If the discount rate
increased/decreased by 0 5% the surplus would increase/decrease by ¢ £50m If the inflation rate increased by 0 25%, the surplus
would decrease by c £50m
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C Demographic assumptions

Apart from post retirement mortality, the demographic assumptions are in ine with those adopted for the last formal actuanal valuation
of the scheme perfermed as at 31 March 2012 The post-retirement mortality assumptions are based on an analysis of the penstoner
mortalty trends under the scheme for the period to March 2012 updated to allow for anticipated lengevity improvements over the
subsequent years The specific mortality rates used are based on the VITA tables, adjusted to allow for the expenence of scheme
pensioners The life expectancies underlying the valuation are as follows

2014 2013

Current pensioners {(at age 65} - males 224 224
- females 241 241

Future pensioners (at age 65) - males 218 218
- females 246 245

Deferred pensioners (at age 65) - males 226 225
- females 254 254

An increase of one year in the life expectancies would decrease the surplus by c £230m
D Analysis of assets

The investment strategy of the UK deftned benefit pension scheme i1s driven by its lability profile, in particular tts inflation-hinked
pension benefits In addition to its interest in the Scottish Limited Partnership {refer to note C4), the scheme invests in different types of
bonds (including corporate bonds and gilts) and denvative instruments (including inflation, interest rate, cross-currency and total return
swaps) tn order to align movements in the value of its assets with movements in its habifites ansing from changes in market conditions
Broadly the scheme has hedging that covers 80% of interest rate movements and 84% of inflation movements, as measured on the
Trustee's funding assumptions which use a discount rate denved from gilt yields

The farr value of the plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category, are as follows

2014 2013
{restated)!
£m im
Debt investments
= Government 2,292 6 25310
- Corporate Bonds 1,255 7 1,232 3
- Asset backed secunties and structured debt 2320 207 8
Scottish Limited Partnership interest (see note C4) . 9Mme 1,035 4
Equity investments — quoted 940 9 906 7
Equity investments - unguoted 110 1 890
Property 2752 2058
Derivatives
- Interest and inflation rate swap contracts 513 324 3
- Foreign exchange contracts and other derivatives ) 123 3 167 9
Hedge and reinsurance funds 3298 3239
Cash and cash equivalents 444 1 1599
Qther 122 56 6
7,0391 7,240 6

1 Restatement refates to the adoption of the rewised IAS 19 Employes Benefiis {2ee note C1)

The fair values of the above equity and debt investments are determimed based on publicly available market prices wherever avallable
Unquoted investments, hedge funds and reinsurance funds are stated at fair value estimates provided by the manager of the
investment or fund Property includes both quoted and unquoted investments The market value of the Scottuish Limited Partnership
interest 1s based on the expected cash flows and benchmark asset-backed credit spreads Itis the policy of the Scheme to hedge a
proportion of interest rate and inflation nsk The Scheme reduces its foreign currency exposure using forward foretgn exchange
contracts

At year end, the UK scheme indirectly held 199,523 (last year 150,955) ordinary shares in the Company through its mvestment in UK
Equity Index Funds
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E Analysis of ameunt charged against profits
Amounts recognised In comprehensive income n respect of defined benefit plans are as follows

2013
2014 {restated)’
£m £m
Current service cost o o . 866 66 4
Administration costs 30 30
Past service costs — curtallment charge B A 10 10
One-off UK pension credit (10.0) -
Net interest income {34.8) (6 4)
Total 458 64 0
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit surplus
Actual return on scheme assets excluding amounts included in net interest income (343.8) 627 4
Actuanal (loss) — experience (17 4) 110
Actuanal (loss) — demographic assumptions - (80 0)
Actuanal gain/(loss) -~ financial assumptions 2640 {400 5)
Components of defined benefit cost recognized in other comprehensive Income (97 2) 1359
Total {51 4) 199 9
1 Restatement relates to the adogtion of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits' (see note C1)
F Scheme assets
Changes in the fair value of the scheme assets are as follows
2013
2014 {restated)’
£m £m
Farr value of scheme assets at start of year _ 12406 6,503 2
Interest iIncome based on discount rate . 3143 278 0
Actual return on scheme assets excluding ameunts included in net interest income’ ) (343 8) 6275
Employer contributions _899 675
Benefits pard ' (258 9) (232 6)
Administration costs (3.0} (30)
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year 7,0391 7,2408
1 Restatement relates to the adeption of the revised IAS 18 Employee Benefits (see note C1)
2 '(I;r;? actual return on scheme assets was a loss of (£28m) (last year restated retumn of £807m) Restatement relates to the adoption of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits (see note
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G Pensions and other post-retirement habiities
Changes in the present value of retirement benefit obligations are as follows

2013
2014 {restated)’
fm £m
Present value of obligation at start of year ) N . .__68034 6,0055
Current service cost ~ 866 66 4
Curtatiment charge R .10 10
One-off UK pension credit _ {100 -
Interest cost 27956 2716
Benefits paid (258 9) (232 6)
Actuanal loss — experience 174 110
Actuanal loss — demographic assumptions - 800
Actuanal {gam)/loss - financial assumptions {264 0) 4005
Present value of obligation at end of year 6,455 0 6,603 4
Analysed as_ . . o _
Present value of penston scheme habilities 6444 0 65910
Unfunded pension plans - g1
Post-retirement healthcare 110 123
Present value of obligation at end of year 6,455 0 6,603 4

1 Restatement relates to the adoption of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits (see note C1)

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at 29 March 2014 1s 18 years (last year 18 years)

C4 Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme interest in the Scottish Limited Partnership

The Company 1s a general parther and the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 1s a imited partner of the Marks and Spencer Scottish
Limited Partnership

The Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership holds £1 6bn (last year £1 6bn) of properties which have been leased back to the
Company at market rates

Under IAS 19, the partnership interest of the Pension Scheme in the Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership 1s included within the UK
pension scheme assets, valued at £971 9m (last year £1,035 4m) For further details see note C3 The market value of this non-quoted
financial asset 1s measured based on the expected cash flows and benchmark asset-backed credit spreads

As general partner, the Company has a nght of pre-emption in respect of a transfer by the Pension Scheme of its imited partnership interest to
another party This allows the general partner to direct that, instead of transfernng the imited partnership interest to such a party, the general
partner can instead nominate the transferee

C5 Share-based payments

Disclosures for the Company are not provided here as the impact on the income statement, and the assets and liabiities of the Company are
not matenally dissimilar to that of note 12 in the Company's consolidated financial statements
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C6 Intangible assets

Computer
Computer software under
ftware development Total
£m £m £m
At 31 March 2012
Cost or valuation 5305 739 604 4
Accumulated amortisation (187 9) - (187 9)
Net book value 3426 739 416 5
Year ended 30 March 2013
Openung net book value 34286 739 416 5
Additions 4867 136 ¢ 1836
Transfers B 278 (27 8) -
Amgertisation charge 69 7) - {89 7)
Closing net bock value 347 4 183 0 530 4
At 30 March 2013
Cost 6050 1830 7880
Accumulated amortisation (257 6) - (257 6)
Net bock value 347 4 183 0 5304
Year ended 29 March 2014
Opening net book value 3474 1830 5304
Addittons 126 1 726 1987
Transfers 1374 (137.4) -
Amortisation charge {82 9) - (82 9)
Closing net book value 5280 118 2 646 2
At 29 March 2014
Cost 8685 118 2 986 7
Accumulated amortisation {340 5) - {340 5)

Net book value 5280 118 2 646 2
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C7 Property, plant and equipment

Assals in the
iandand  Fuxtures fittings course of
bunkdings and equipment construchon Total
£m £m £m £m

At 31 March 2012

Cost 992 6 51430 3213 64569
Accumulated depreciation (88 9) {3,352 6) - (3,441 5)
Net book value 9037 1,790 4 3213 30154
Year ended 30 March 2013

Opening net book value 9037  1,7904 3213 30154
Additions 16 4 420 4 1453 581 1
Transfers 14 8 148 7 (163 5) -
Disposals %42y (31 } - (57 3}
Asset write-offs (02) {94) - (9 6}
Depreciation charge (87) (327 0) - (333 7)
Closing net book value g728 2,0200 3031 31959
At 30 March 2013

Cost 965 4 56813 3031 6,949 8
Accumulated depreciation (92 6) {3,6613) - (3,753 9)
Net book value 872 8 20200 3031 31959
Year ended 29 March 2014

Opening net book value 8728 2,020 0 3031 3,195 9
Additions 331 348 8 107 9 489 8
Transfers a5 155.8 {197 3) -
Disposals (05) {4 2) - (47)
Asset write-offs {18) {3 6} (57) {11.1}
Depreciation charge (8 2) (326 0) - (334 2)
Closing net book value 936.9 21908 2080 33367
Al 29 March 2014

Cost 1,037 7 6,164 4 208.0 7,410.1
Accumulated depreciation (100 8) {3,973 8) - {4,074 4—)
Net book value 936.9 21908 208 0 3,335.7

The net book value above includes land and buildings of £37 1m (last year £37 4m) and equipment of £4 2m (last year £11 1m) where

the Company s a lessee under a finance lease

Additions to property, plant and equipment during the year amounting to £nil (last year £nil) were financed by new finance leases
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C8 Investments

A Investments in Group undertakings

Sharesn Group  Loans to Group
undertakings undertakings Total
£m €m £m

At 31 March 2012
Cosl or valuation 1,439 4 05 1,439 9
Provision for impairnent (177 5) - (177 5)
Net book value 1,261 9 05 1,262 4
Year ended 30 March 2013
Opening net book value 1,261 9 05 1,262 4
Additions 78 - 78
Disposals (77 6) - (77 6)
Closing net book value 1,162 1 05 1,192 6
At 30 March 2013
Cost 1,369 6 05§ 1,370 1
Proviston for impanment (177 5) - (177 5)
Net book value 1,1921 05 1,192 6
Year ended 29 March 2014
Opemnyg net book value 1,192 1 05 1,192 6
Additions - - -
Disposals {44 4) - (44 4)
Provision for impaiment (64 7) - (64 7)
Closing net book value 1,083 0 05 1,083 5
At 29 March 2014
Cost 1,3252 0S5 1,3257
Proviston for impairment (242 2) - {242 2)
Net book value 1,083 0 05 1,083 5

During the year, the Company struck off 14 non-principal subsidiary undertakings as a result of the corporate rationalisation

programme In addition, the Company disposed of its investment in Turkey as part of a restructunng arrangement with another related

party in the Group

The provision for impairment relates to the impairment of the iInvestment in per una Group Limited following transfer of trade and assets
into the Company, less reversal of provisions related to three of the entities struck off dunng the year
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B Pnncipal subsidiary undertalungs

The Company's princtpal subsidiary undertakings are set out below A schedule of interests in all undertakings 15 filed with the Annual

Return

Proportion of

voting nghts

and sharas held

by

Prncipal actrity Country of ncomparation and operaton Company A subsidiary
Marks and Spencer International Holdings Limited Holding company Great Bnitain. 100% -
Marks and Spencer (Nederland} BV Helding company The Netherlands - 100%
Marks and Spencer Marlnopgulos BV Holcimg company The Netherlands - 100%
Marks and Spencer Czech Republic a s ’ Retailing Czech Republic — 100%
Marks and Spencer {Ireland) Limited! Retailing Repubiic of Ireland - 100%
Marks and Spencer {(Asia Pacific) Limited Retailing Heong Kong - 100%
Marks and Spencer Simply Foods Limited Retalling Great Britain 100% -
Marks and Spencer Marninopoulos Greece SA Rétalllng Greece - 80%
MS @énerél_lnsurance LP fmancn:il services Guernsey - h 160_%
Marks and Spencer Guernsey Investments LLP Financial services Guernsey - 100%
Marks and Spencer Investments Limited Finance Great Britain - 100%
St Michael Finance plc Finance Great Britain 100% -
per una Group Limited Procurement Great Britain 100% -

2

Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership Property investment  Great Bntain =

] Pursuant 1o the prewisions of Section 17, Companes {Amendmert) Act 1986 Marks and Spencer pic has rrevocably guaranteed the hatilties of Marks and Spencer {ireland)

Limited and as a resutt Marks and Spencer ({Ireland) Limited has been exempt from the filing provisions of Section 7 Companes (Amendment) Act 1986
2 Marks and Spencer pic is the general partner

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 410 of the Companies Act 2006 by providing information only in
relation to subsidiary undertakings whose resuits or financial position, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the financial

statements

C9 Other financial assets

2014 2013
£m Em

Non-current B
Unlisted investments ) ’ o Y ) 30
Other mvestments' 133 314
16 3 344

Current
Other mvestments 18 03
1 Non-current other investments are £13 3m (last year £31 4m) shares in Marks and Spencer. Group plc held for employee share schemes

Non-current unhisted investments and other investments (shares in Marks and Spencer Group pic) are carred as available-for-sale

assets All other financial assets are measured at fairr value with changes in their value taken to the income statement
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C10 Trade and other receivables

2014 2013
£m £m
Non-current . . i} o

E’repa;}rr_le_nTs and accrued income i ’ " 1088 1107
108 8 110 7

Current _ .
Trade recewvables 123 4 1106
Less Prowvision for mpairment of receivables {07) (6 4)
Trade receivables — net 1227 104 2
Other recewvables ) } "o 13
Prepayments and accrued income 117 3 100 5
Amounts owed by parent company _ . 24718 2,516 8
Amounts owed by subsidiary companies 486 9 461 6
3,2097 3,194 4

Trade recewvables that were past due but not impaired amounted to £1 5m (last year £1 8m) and are mainly sterling denominated The
Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value

As at 20 March 2014, £404 2m (last year £399 Om) of the intercompany receivable Is interest bearing Overall the interest receivable
during the year was £10 4m (last year £7 6m) Interest rates are set within individual intercompany loan agreements however are

approximately in ine with LIBOR The remaining £2,554 5 (last year £2,579 4m) of intercompany receivables are interest-free

C11 Cash and cash equivatents

Cash and cash equivalents are £120 5m (last year £125 0m) The carrying amount of these assets approximates therr far value
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits 1s 0 03% (last year 1s 0 03%) These deposits have an average maturity of two

days (last year three days)

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement compnse the following balance sheet amounts

2014 2013
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand ) __1266 157 1
Bank loans and overdrafts {417 85) (118 1)
Syndicated bank facility i 2339 810
Bank loans and overdrafts treated as financing 1775 50
1205 125 0
C12 Trade and other payables
2014 2013
£m £m
Current
Trade and other payables o 1,1125 958 3
Social secunty and other taxes 584 527
Accruals and deferred income . _ %207 367 8
Amounts owed to subsidianes 1,424 7 1,350 2
3,016 3 2,729 0
Non-current o
Other payables 486 4 422 4

As at 29 March 2014, £1,057 3m (last year £1,165 7m) of the intercompany payable 1s interest beanng Overall the interest payable
during the year was £7 1m (last year £14 7m) Interest rates are set within individual intercompany loan agreements however are

approximately 1n ine with LIBOR The remainuing £367 4 (last year £184 5m) of intercompany payables are interest-free
Cost of Inventones recognised as an expense during the year is £4,516 3m {last year £5,261 2m)
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€13 Borrowings and other financial habiliies

2014 2013
£m £m

Current _ _ B
Bank loans and overdrafts’ 4175 118 1
5 625% £400m medium-term notes 2014* - 400 2
Finance lease habiites 32 67
4207 5250

Neon-current

6 250% US$500m medium-term notes 2017° 306 3 3357
6 125% £400m medium-term notes 20197 4223 4369
6 125% £300m medium-term notes 2021 - 3021 3016
4 75% £400m medium-terms notes 2025 3923 401 4
7 125% US$300m medium-term notes 2037° 1829 2007
Finance lease habilities 42 4 439
1,648 3 1,720 2
Total 20690 2,2452

Bank loans and overdrafis mcludes a £5 Om {last year £5 Om) lcan from the Hedge End Park Limited joint ventura (sea nota C20)
Thasa notes are 1ssued under Marks and Spencer pic s £3bn European medium-term note programme and all pay interest annualty
Interest on these bonds Is payable semrennually

0On 24 March 2014 the Group repaid £400m of 5 625% medium term notes

AWK -

Finance leases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as shown in the table on page 60 It 1s the Company's policy to lease
certain of ts properties and eguipment under finance leases The average lease term for equipment s five years (last year five years)
and 125 years (last year 125 years) for property Interest rates are fixed at the contract rate All leases are on a fixed repayment basis
and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent payments The Company's obligations under finance leases are secured
by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets

C14 Financial instruments

Treasury policy

Marks and Spencer plc 1s the main treasury entity of the Group and as a result the treasury function 1s managed through this company
The term Company and Group are therefore interchangeable in the nsk analysis below The Company operates a centrahsed treasury
function to manage the Group's funding requirements and financial nsks in ine with the Board approved treasury policies and
procedures, and their delegated authonties

The Company’s financial instruments, other than denvatives, comprise borrowings, cash and iquid resources and vanous items, such
as trade recevables and trade payables, that anise directly from s operations The main purpose of these financial instruments 1s to
finance the Company's operations

The Group treasury function also enters into denvative transactions, principally interest rate and currency swaps and forward curency
contracts The purpose of these transactions I1s to manage the interest rate and currency nsks ansing from the Company's operations
and financing

It remains the Group's policy not to hold or 1ssue financial instruments for trading purposes, except where financial constraints
necessitate the need to iquidate any outstanding investments The treasury function is managed as a cost centre and dees not engage
in speculative trading
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C14 Financial instruments continued

Financial nsk management

The principal financial nsks faced by the Group are hquidity/funding, interest rate, foreign currency and counterparty nsks The policies

and strategies for managing these nsks are summansed on the following pages

(a) Liguidity/funding nsk

The risk that the Company could be unable to settle or meet its obligations at a reasonable price as they fall due

—  The Group’s funding strategy ensures a mix of funding sources offering flexibiity and cost effectiveness to match the requirements

of the Group

—  Operating subsidiaries are financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings, medium-term notes and committed

syndicated bank facilities

At year end, the Company had a commitied syndicated bank revolving credit facility of £1 325bn set to mature on 28 September 2018
and a facility of £150m set to mature on 16 May 2014 (with an option to extend to a facility of £100 Om maturing on 16 May 2015)
These faciliies contain only one financial covenant being the ratio of earmings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rents
payable, to interest plus rents payable The covenant 1s measured semi-annually The Company also has a number of undrawn
uncommitted facilites available to it At year end, these amounted to £80m (last year £105m), all of which are due to be reviewed
within a year At the balance sheet date a sterling equivalent of £233 9m (last year £81m) was drawn under the committed facihties and
£22 5m (last year £nil} was drawn under the uncommitted facilities

In addition to the existing borrowings, the Company has a euro medium-term note programme of £3bn, of which £1 1bn (last year

£1 5bn} was In 1ssuance as at the balance sheet date
The 5 625% £400m bond was repaid in March 2014

The contractual matunty of the Company’s non-derivative financial habilities (excluding trade and other payables (see note C12)) and

denvatives 1s as follows

Bank loans Finance
and Syndicated Medwm-term lease Derivative Denvative
overdrafts  bank taciity notes. yabtities Totat assets Wabilities Totat
£m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
Timing of cash flows
Within cne year (37 1) (81 0) {509 6} 87) (6364) 23789 (2,3363) 426
Between ane and two years - - (96 6) (38) (100 4) 20017 (192 Q) 97
Between two and ﬁ_ve years - - (619 5) (5 6) (625 1) 449 3 (431 1) 182
More than five years - - (1,8543} (1629) (2,017 2) 4856 (468 1) 175
(37 1) (_81 Q) (3_,080 1)) g18‘] Q) (3,3791) 3,6155 (3,427 5) 880
Effect of discounting and foreign exchange - - 1.0035 130 4 1,133 8
At 30 March 2013 (37 1) (810) (2,076 5) (50 8) (2,2452)
Timing of cash flows - o -
Within one year _ i _ {183 6) (2339) (93 5) (50) (5160} 2,6299 (2,6748) (44 9
Between one and two years - - (935) (24)  (959) 2074 (2038) 36
Between two and five years o T _ _ ___—_is828) _ (54) (5880) 3834 _(514_4)7 A(31 0)
More than five years - - (1,7374) (1610) (1,898 4) 4255 (478 8) (53 3)
o ) ) ___{1836)  (2339) (2,487 0) {173 8) (3,078 3) 3,646 2 (3,771 8) {125 6)
Effect of discounting and foreign exchange - - 8811 128 2 1,009 3
At 20 March 2014 {183 6) {2339) (1,6059) {45 8) (2,069 0)
The present value of finance lease llabilites 1s as follows
2014 2013
£m £m
Withun one year (32) &7
Later than one year and not later than five years {0 9) 24)
Later than five years (41 5) (41 5)
Total (45 6) (50 8)
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C14 Financial instruments continued

Financial nsk management continued
(b) Counterparty risk
Counterparty nisk exists where the Company can suffer financial loss through default or non-performance by financial institutions

Exposures are managed through Group treasury policy which imits the value that can be placed with each approved counterparty to
minimise the nsk of loss The counterparties are imited to the approved institutions with secure long-term credit ratings A-/A3 or better,
assigned by Moody's and Standard & Poor's respectively, unless approved by exception by the CFO Limuts are reviewed regularly by
senior management The credit nsk of these financial instrurnents 15 estimated as the fair value of the assets resulting from the
contracts

The table below analyses the Company’s short-term investments and denvative assets by credit exposure excluding bank balances,
store cash and cash in transit

Cradit rating of t:v:)t.lﬁlerpartyJ

ARAM AA AA- A+ A A BBS+
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m Total
Short-term investments® 01 - 16 20 52 - - 89
Denvative assets? — - 159 64 42 4 16 1 - 808
At 30 March 2013 01 - 175 84 476 16 1 - 897
AAAM AA AA- A+ A A- BBB+*
£m £m £fm £m £m £m £m Total
Short-term investments? - - 26 - 75 - - 101
Dernvative assels? - - 64 05 114 55 I 304
At 29 March 2014 - - 90 05 189 55 66 405

Includes cash on deposit and money market funds held by Marks & Spencer Scotbsh Limited Partnership Marks & Spencer plc and Marks & Spencer General Insurance LP
Excludes the embedded denvative within the lease host contract

Standard & Poor's equivalent rating shown as reference to the lowest credit rating of the counterparty from either Standard & Poor's ar Moody s

Exposure to a counterparly approved as an exception to treasury policy

B WN =

The Company has very low retail credit risk due to transactions being principally of a high volume, low value and short maturity

The maximum exposure to credit nisk at the balance sheet date was as follows trade receivables £123m (last year £104m), other
receivables £11m (last year £11m), cash and cash equivalenis £120 5m (last year £125m), and denvatives £62m {£121m)

(c) Foreigh currency nsk

Transactional foreign currency exposures anse from both the export of goods from the UK to overseas subsidianes, and from the
import of matenals and goods directly sourced from overseas suppliers

Group treasury hedges these exposures principally using forward foreign exchange contracts progressively covenng up 1o 100% out to
18 months Where appropriate, hedge cover can he taken out longer than 18 months, with Board approval The Company 1s primarily
exposed to foreign exchange nisk in relation to sterling against movements in US dollar and euro

Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to the Company’s forecast currency requirements are designated as cash flow hedges
with fair value movements recogmised directly in comprehensive income To the extent that these hedges cover actuat currency
payables or recevables, then associated fair value movements previously recognised in comprehensive income are recorded in the
income statement in conjunction with the corresponding asset or lability At the balance sheet date the gross notional value in sterling
terms of forward foreign exchange contracts amounted to £2,148m (last year £1,711m) with a weighted average maturnty date of six
months (last year seven months)

Gains and losses in equity on forward foreign exchange contracts as at 29 March 2014 will be released to the income statement at
various dates over the following 16 months (last year 15 months) from the batance sheet date

The Company uses a combination of foreign currency debt and derwvatives to hedge balance sheet translation exposures As at the
balance sheet date €162m of currency debt (last year €200m of denvatives) and HK$698m (last year HK$484m) of derivatives were
hedging overseas net assets

The Company also hedges foreign currency intercompany loans where these exist Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to
the hedging of the Company’s foreign currency intercompany loans are designated as held for trading with fair value movements being
recognised in the income statement The corresponding fair value mavement of the intercompany loan balance results in an overall £nil
(last year £nil) impact on the income statement As at the balance sheet date the gross notional value of intercompany loan hedged
was E573m {last year £307m)
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C14 Finanaal instruments continued

{c) Foreign currency nsk continued

After taking into account the hedging denvatives entered into by the Company, the currency and interest rate exposure of the
Company's financial habilibes excluding short-term, 1s set out below

2014 2013
Foed rate Floating rate Total Fixad rate Floating rate Total
£m fm £m £m £m £m

Currency ~
Sterling 1,226 5 7086 1,9351 1,927 1 3181 2,245 2
Euro - 1339 1339 - - -
1,226 5 8425 2,069 0 1,927 1 3181 22452

The floating rate sterling borrowings are linked to interest rates related to LIBOR These rates are for penods between one and six
months

As at the balance sheet date and excluding finance leases, the fixed rate sterling borrowings are at an average rate of 5 3% (last year
5 6%) and the weighted average time for which the rate is fixed 1s nine years (last year eight years)

(d) Interest rate nsk
The Company i1s exposed to interest rate nsk in relation to sterling, US dollar, and euro varnable rate financial assets and habihities

The Group's policy 1s to use dervative contracts where necessary to maintain a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings to manage
this nsk The structure and matunty of these denvatives correspond to the underlying borrowings and are accounted for as far value or
cash flow hedges as appropnate

At the batance sheet date, fixed rate borrowings amounted to £1,226 5m (last year £1,927 1m) representing the public bond i1ssues and
finance leases, amounting to 59% {last year 86%) of the Company’s gross borrowings

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows

2014 2013
% %
Committed and uncommitted barrowings 10 12
Medwum-term notes . 53 56
Finance leases 42 43
Denvative financial instruments
2014 2013
Assets Liabiiies Assals Liabilittes
£m Em £m £m
Current ~ .
QOptions
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 114 {50 9) 340 (12 Q)
- cash flow hedges with group 96 {20 7) 139 {7 0)
- held for trading 07 (05) 25 (0 5)
- net investment hedges | - ’ - 49 -
217 {72 1} 553 (19 5)
Non-current
Cross cufrency swaps —  cash flow hedges - (62 3) 32 (12 4}
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges 03 (09) 38 on
Interest rate swaps —  fair value hedge 179 {12 2) 324 -
Embedded dernvative 224 - 259 -
406 (75 4) 653 {13 1)

The Group holds a number of interest rate swaps to re-des:gnate its sterling fixed debt to floating debt These are reported as fair value
hedges The ineffective portion recognised in the profit or loss that anses from farr value hedges amounts to £0 5m (last year £nil) as
the gain on the hedged item was £33 7m (last year £8 Om loss) and the loss on the hedging instrument was £34 2m {last year £8 Om
gain) The Group also holds a number of cross currency swaps to re-designate its fixed rate US dollar debt to fixed rate sterling debt
These are reported as cash flow hedges
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Sensitivity analysis

The table below llustrates the estmated impact on the income statement and equity as a result of market movements in foreign
exchange and interest rates in relation to the Company’s financial instruments The Company consider that a 2% +/- (last year 2%}
movement in interest rates and a 20% +/- (last year 20%) weakening in sterling represents a reasonable possible change However
this analysis 1s for illustrative purposes only

The impact in the income statement due to changes In interest rates reflects the effect on the Company's fioating rate debt as at the
balance sheet date The impact in equity reflects the fair value movement in relation to the Company’s cross currency swaps

The impact from foreign exchange movements reflects the change in the fair value of the Company’s transactional foreign exchange
cash flow hedges and the net investment hedges at the balance sheet date The equity impact shown for foreign exchange sensitivity
relates to denvative and non-denvative financial instruments hedging net investments This value 1s expected to be fully offset by the
re-translation of the hedged foreign currency net assets leaving a net equity impact of zero

The table excludes financial instruments that expose the Company to interest rate and foreign exchange rnisk where such risk 1s fully
hedged with another financial instrument Also excluded are trade receivables and payables as these are either sterling denominated

or the foreign exchange nsk 1s hedged

2% decrease 2% increase 20% 20%
n tnterest in ntarest waakening strangthen:ng
rates rates n stering in sterling
£m £m £m £m

At 30 March 2013 }
Impact on income statement gamn/({loss) 61 {14 3) - -
Impact on other comprehensive income (loss)/gamn (7 6) 33 216 8 (144 5)

At 29 March 2014

tmpact on tincome staterment gaini{loss) N 15 {24 6) - -
Impact on cther comprehensive income (loss)/gamn {18 7) 186 190 9 (200 4)

Offsetting of financial assets and habllities

The following tables set out the financial assets and financial labilities which are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements Amounts which are set off against financial assets and liabilittes in the Company’s statement of
financia!l positton are set out below For trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, amounts not offset in the statement

of financial positon but which could be offset under certain circumstances are also set out

Gross financial assets’  Gross financial  Net financial assets  Related amounts not Net
{habilities) (habskhies)/ {labiitias) per sot off in the £m

assets set off Statement of fiassets/ statement of financia!l

£m em position position

£m £m

At 29 March 2014

Trade and other receivables 335 (24 2) 93 @3 -
Derivative financial assets 304 - 304 (30 4) -
Cash and cash equivalents 452 (390) 62 - 62
1091 (63 2) 459 (397) 6.2
Trade and other payables (233 2) 24.2 {209.0) 9.3 (199.7)
Denwvative financial habilities (126 9) - {(126.9) 30.4 {96.5)
Bank loans and overdrafts (45 1} 39.0 (6.1) - (6.1)
(405 2) 63.2 {342 0) 39.7 (302 3)
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Offsetting of financial assets and habilites continued

Gross financial assels! Gross financial  Net finanaal assets! Related amounts Met
(labiltsos) {habities) {labiites) per not set off in the £m

£m assets sot off Statement of fiassets/ statement of

£m position  financial postion

£m £m
At 30 March 2013

Trade and other receivables 126 (50) 76 (7 8) -
Dervative financial assets 809 - 809 (25 6) 553
Cash and cash equivalents o i 545 {179y 366 = 366
1480 (22 9) 1351 (33%) 919
Trade and other payables S (152 3) 50 {147 3) 76 {139 7)
Denvative financtal habilities (25 6) - {25 6) 256 -
Bank loans and overdrafts e 99 17e {320) - 320
(227 8) 226 {204 9) 332 717

The gross financial assets and habiities set off in the balance sheet primanly relate to cash pooling arrangements with banks Amounts
which do not meet the cnteria for offsetting on the Statement of Financial Posthion but could be settled net in certain circumstances
principally relate to denivative transactions under International Swaps and Denvatives Association (ISDA) agreements where each
party has the option to settle amounts on a net basis in the event of default of the other party

Far value hierarchy

The Group uses the foillowing hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial nstruments by valuation technique

Level 1 quoted (unadjusted) prices 1 active markets for identical assets or habilities,

Level 2 not traded in an active market but the fair values are based on quoted market prices or alternative pncing sources with
reasonable levels of price transparency The Company's level 2 financial instruments include OTC dernvatives, and

Level 3 techmigues which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market
data Unhsted equity investments are included in Leve! 3 The fair value of embedded dervatives 1s determined using the present value
of the estimated future cash flows based on financial forecasts The nature of the valuation techniques and the judgement around the

inputs mean that a change in assumptions could result in significant change in the fair value of the instrument

As at the end of the reporiing period, the Group held the following financial instruments measured at fair value

2014 2013

Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Leval 1 Level 2 Leval 3 Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Assets measured at farr value

Financial assets at farr value through

profit and loss B

- Trading dervatives . 07 . 07 - 25 - 25

Denvatives used for hedging - 392 - 92 - 922 - 922

Embedded denvatives - - 224 224 - - 259 259

Avatilable-for-sale financial assets

- equity securities 133 . 30 163 314 - 30 344

Short term investments - 18 - 18 - 03 - 03

Liabities measured at fair value o

Financial habilities at fair value through

profit and loss ) .

- Trading denwatives - (¢ 5) - {0 5) - €5 - (05}

Denvative used for hedging - {147 0) - (147 0) - (32 1) - (32 1)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements,
measurements in the current or prior years

and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
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The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments

2014 2013

£m £m

Opening bafance 289 231
Gans/( losses) recognised in the income statement (5 5_) 58
Closing balance 254 28¢%

Fair value of financial instruments

With the exception of the Company’s fixed rate bond debt, there were no matenal differences between the carrying value of non-
denvative financial assets and financial habilities and their farr values as at the balance sheet date

The carrying value of the Company’s fixed rate bond debt was £1,605 9m (last year £2,076 5m), the fair value of this debt was
£1,780 3m (last year £2,196 6m)

Capital policy

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern n order to provide optimal
returns for shareholders and to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In doing so the Group’s strategy 1s to maintain a capital structure commensurate with an investment grade credit rating and to retain
appropriate levels of hquidity headroom to ensure financial stability and flexibiity To achieve this strategy the Group regularly monitors
key credit metrics such as the gearing ratio, cash flow to net debt (see note 27 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report)
and fixed charge cover to maintain this position In addition, the Group ensures a combination of appropriate committed short-term
iquidity headroom with a diverse and balanced long-term debt matunty profile As at the balance sheet date the Group's average debt
matunty profile was nine years (last year nine years) During the year the Group maintained an investment grade credit rating of Baa3
{stable) with Moody’s and BBB- (stable) with Standard & Poor's

In order to maintain or reaiign the capital structure, the Group may adjust the number of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

C15 Provisions

2014 2013
£m £m
At start of year 26 2 251
Provided in the year 40 4 107
Released in the year {(19) (22)
Utiised duning the year (21 1) {7 4)
At end of year 43 6 26 2
Analysis of provisions X
Current 255 157
Non-current 18 1 105
Total provisions 436 26 2

The provisions primarily compnse of one-off costs related to the strategic restructure in the UK in 2008/09 (including onerous leases)
and costs in relation to the current restructure of the logistics distribution network

The current element of the provision pnimarily relates to onerous leases and redundancies The non-current element of the provision
relates to store closures, pnmanly onerous leases, and 1s expected to be utilised over a period of ten years
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C16 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided under the balance sheet liability method using a tax rate of 20% (last year 23%)

The movements in deferred tax assets and lhabihties (after offsetting balances within the same jurisdiction as permitted by IAS 12 —
‘tncome Taxes’) dunng the year are shown below

Deferred tax {habiities)/assets

Land and Capital Pension Other Total

buldings allowances in {emporary short-term UK

temporary oxcess of differences temporary  deferred tax

differences  deprectation (restated’ differences {restated
£m £m £m £m £m

At 1 Apnl 2012 (53 9) (78 5) (48 6) 136 (167 4)
Credited/{charged) to the income statement 55 86 {14 9) (0 6) {14)
{Charged)/credited to equity - - (53 7) (0 4) (54 1)
At 30 March 2013 (48 4) (69 9) (117 2) 126 (222 9
AU31 March 2013 . _ 484 _ (699) (1172) 126 (2229
Credited/{charged) to lhe income statement o117 (@3) (08 (100 _(310)
Charged to equity - - 12 263 275
At 29 March 2014 (47 3) {91 2) {116 8) 289 (226 4)
1 Restatement relatas 1o the adoption of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits {see note C1)

Cther short-term differences relate mainly to employee share options and financial instruments

The deferred tax liability on fixed asset temporary differences 1s reduced by the benefit of capital losses with a tax value of £46 5m (last
year £62 Om)

No deferred tax has been recognised m respect of undistnibuted earnings of overseas subsidianes and joint ventures, as no matenal
hakiity 1s expected to anse on distnbution of these earnings under applicable tax legislation

C17 Ordinary share capial

2014 2013

Shares £m Shares £m

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p each 2,850,039,477 7125 2,850,039,477 7125
C18 Contingencies and commitments

A Capital commitments

2014 2013

£m £m

Commitments in respect of properties in the course of construction 63 6 17

B Other matenal contracts

In the event of a matenial change in the trading arrangements with certain warehouse operators, the Company has a commitment {o
purchase property, plant and equipment, at values ranging from historical net book value to market value, which are currently owned
and operated by the warehouse operators on the Group’s behalf

See note C4 for details on the partnership arrangement with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme

C Commitments under operating leases

The Company leases various stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The
leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal nghts

2014 2013
£m £m
Total future mimimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows
Withtn one year ) _ _ _ R 184 4 1751
Later than one year and not {ater than five years ’ -69-8_5_ " T Be33
Later than five years and not later than ten years s i _ 800 7 798 9
Later than ten years and not later than 15 years i ’ i i 548 4 568 6
Later than 15 years and not later than 20 years i i §1 07 3139
Later than 20 years and not later than 25 years T T - 223 8 © 2260
Later than 25 years 981 6 1,014 0
Total 3,748 1 37898

The total future sublease payments to be received are £42 1m (last year £47 Om)
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C19 Analysis of cash flows given in the statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities

2013
2014 (restatea’

£m £m

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 149 6 5498
Income tax expense 76 0 412
Finance costs 126 1 2137
Finance income {50 5) (389)
Operating profit 301 2 765 8
Increase in inventones {81 1) (80 9)
(Increase)/decrease n recewvables (27 3) 500
Increase In payables 2230 1318
Non-underlying operating cash outflows {63 2) (21 4)
Depreciation, amortisation and asset wnte-offs 428 2 4130
Share-based payments 212 256
Pension costs charged against operating profit 806 704
Cash contributions to pension schemes {89 9) (67 5)
Non-underlying operating profit tems 839 21
Cash generated from operations 896 6 1,288 9

1 Restatement relates 1o the adoption of the rewised [AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits (see nate C1)

Non-underlying operating cash outflows primarily relate to the utiisation of the provisions for UK restructuring and strategic programme
costs

C20 Related party transactions

A Marks and Spencer Group plc

Dunng the year, the Company paid dividends to its parent company, Marks and Spencer Group plc of £273 6m {last year £273 6m}
and has decreased its loan to its parent company by £45 Om (last year decrease of £24 8m) The outstanding balance was £2,471 8m
{last year £2,516 8m)

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, are summarnised below

2014 2013

Trensactions Transactions

£m £m

Trading sales (342 3) (334 4)
Tradng purchases 129 202 2
Rental expense (132 8) (123 6)
Rent receivable 1986 18 2
Interest 27 (7 1}

B Hedge End joint venture

A lgan of £5 Om was recewved from the joint venture on 9 October 2002 1t 1s repayable on five business days’ notice and was renewed
on 1 January 2014 Interest was charged on the loan at 2 0% until 31 December 2008 and 0 5% thereafter

C Lima (Bradford) joint venture

The Company has entered into a rental agreement with the joint venture and £4 6m (last year £4 6m) of rental charges were incurred
There was no outstanding balance at March 2014

D Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme
Details of other transactions and balances held with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme are set out 1n notes C3 and C4
E Key management compensation

Payments and benefits relating to key management are set out on page 44

C21 Ultimate parent company

The immediate and uftrnate parent undertaking and controlling party 1s Marks and Spencer Group plc

Marks and Spencer Group plc 1s the parent undertaking of the largest group of underiakings to consclidate these financial statements
at 29 March 2014 The consolidated financial statements of Marks and Spencer Group plc are avallable from Waterside House, 35
North Wharf Road, London, W2 1NW
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